
 

Agenda 

 
 

 
 
 

Electronic Regular Council Meeting 
to be held at 

City of Penticton 
To view the Council Meeting, visit www.penticton.ca   

In accordance with the Province of BC Ministerial Order No. M139, the Council of the City of Penticton 
 is participating in the meeting by electronic means. 

  
Tuesday, May 19, 2020 

at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 

1. Call Regular Council Meeting to Order 
 
2. Adoption of Agenda  

 
3. Adoption of Minutes:  
 

3.1 Minutes of the May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting     1-7 Adopt 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

 
5. Correspondence:  

 
5.1 BC Seniors’ Week 2020 and Proclamation                                                              8-9 

Recommendation: THAT Council proclaim June 1 – 8, 2020 as BC Seniors’ Week. 
 

5.2 Slackwater Brewing                                                                  10-11 
Re: Variance to Martin Street Storefront Bylaw – Parts 8 and 9  
Staff Comments:  
With Council’s direction staff would provide recommendation to amend Part 8 and 9 of Martin Street 
Storefront Use Bylaw 2014-12 allowing for more individual flexibility for the design of the patio area, 
while ensuring safety and protection of city infrastructure. In speaking with other operators, this bylaw 
modification would also benefit other businesses within the 200 Block of Martin Street. The building 
permit drawings for this project substantially complied with the Bylaw and was unfortunately not 
discovered to have been not adhered to until partial occupancy was granted.  
 

5.3 Supporting Businesses by Making Liquor Licensing More Flexible                 12-14 
Staff Comments:  
Council may wish to send a similar letter of support to the Honorable David Eby, Attorney General in 
support of flexible liquor licensing regulations for businesses who are looking to expand their outdoor 
seating area as BC begins its COVID-19 restart plan. 
  

6. Staff Reports:  
 

Bauer   6.1 2019 Audited Financial Statements                   15-55      
Jonathan McGraw, BDO Canada LLP  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council accept the Financial Statements as co-presented by BDO Canada 
LLP and the Chief Financial Officer for the year ending December 31, 2019. 

http://www.penticton.ca/
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/uploads/bylaws/Bylaw%202014-12%20Martin%20Street%20Storefront%20Use%20Bylaw.pdf
https://www.penticton.ca/sites/default/files/uploads/bylaws/Bylaw%202014-12%20Martin%20Street%20Storefront%20Use%20Bylaw.pdf


Bauer 6.2 Permissive Tax Exemption Policy Amendment                   56-66      
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council approve the amended “Permissive Tax Exemption Policy”, a policy 
that provides direction on the requirements and evaluation of applications made pursuant to Section 
224 of the Community Charter. 

Kemp 6.3 Economic Recovery Task Force Recommendations                  67-69      
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council support the following initiatives recommended by the Economic 
Recovery Task Force to assist the community in the recovery from the economic impacts of the COVID-
19 pandemic:  
- Waive fees for sidewalk/storefront use permits and relax design standards for 2020; 
- Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP;  
- Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign;  
- Support recovery efforts through the “Love Local Penticton” campaign, which has started;   

AND THAT Council direct staff to begin implementation of the initiatives. 

Laven 6.4 Penticton Yacht Club – Liquor Primary (Club) – Structural Change                70-78      
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council recommend to the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) 
that it supports the application from the Penticton Yacht Club located at 293 Marina Way for a Liquor 
Primary (Club) structural change to increase the exterior patio area and occupant load from 32 persons 
to 70 persons.  

Laven 6.5 Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754                          79-97   
Re: 690 Nelson Avenue  
Staff Recommendation: THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754” for Lot 35 
District Lot 250 Osoyoos Division Yale District Plan 842, located at 690 Nelson Avenue, a permit to 
reduce the front yard setback from 4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side yard setback from 3.0m to 
1.7m, and to reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m to allow for the construction of an 
addition and covered porch on the existing single detached dwelling; 
AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754”. 

7. Bylaws and Permits:

Laven 7.1 Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09   98-99    Adopt 

Development Permit PL2019-8613     100-106              Approve

Re: 2301 Baskin Street 

8. Business Arising

9. Council Round Table

10. Adjournment to a Closed Meeting:
Resolution: THAT Council adjourn to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of the Community 
Charter as follows: Section 90 (1) 
(c) labour relations or other employee relations; 
(j) information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document would be 

prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of 
Privacy Act. 



 
 

Minutes 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Electronic Regular Council Meeting1 
held at City of Penticton  

via WebEx www.penticton.ca  
 

Tuesday, May 5, 2020 
at 1:00 p.m. 

 
 

Present: Mayor Vassilaki   
  Councillor Bloomfield  
  Councillor Kimberley  
  Councillor Regehr 
  Councillor Robinson 
  Councillor Sentes  
  Councillor Watt  
 

   Staff:  Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer  
     Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 
     Jim Bauer, Chief Financial Officer  
     Blake Laven, Director of Development Services 
     Mitch Moroziuk, General Manager of Infrastructure  
      
   

1. Call to Order 
 

The Mayor called the Electronic Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:04 p.m. 
 

2. Application of rules of procedure 
 

107/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council authorize that all regular meetings, special meetings, and committee meetings 
of the City of Penticton be conducted by electronic means allowing all members of Council, 
to attend electronically for the duration of the British Columbia provincial state of emergency 
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic;  
AND THAT Council restrict public attendance at open meetings for the duration of the British 
Columbia provincial state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
AND THAT Council temporarily suspend the voting at meeting procedures (Council 
Procedure Bylaw No. 2018-35 25.(1)(b)) and when ready to vote and the question is called 
those in favor will say “In favour” and those opposed will say “opposed” for the duration of 
the British Columbia provincial state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
      

                                                 
1 In accordance with the Province of BC Ministerial Order No. M139, the Council of the City of Penticton is participating in the meeting by electronic means, without public 
attendance and may adopt a bylaw on the same day as third reading. 

- 1 -

http://www.penticton.ca/


    
Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting  Page 2 of 7 
 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda 
  

108/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Electronic Regular Council Meeting held on  
May 5, 2020 as amended to include correspondence from Penticton Farmers’ Market as item 
6.3 and add correspondence from Cantex to item 7.1.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4. Adoption of Minutes: 
 

  4.1 Minutes of the April 21, 2020 Electronic Regular Meeting of Council  
 

109/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council adopt the minutes of the April 21, 2020 Electronic Regular Meeting of Council 
as presented.  

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

  4.2 Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Electronic Special Meeting of Council  
 

110/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 THAT Council adopt the minutes of the April 23, 2020 Electronic Special Meeting of Council 
as presented.  

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

5. Consent Agenda: 
 
111/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 

 THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda: 
1. Penticton and Ellis Creek Restoration Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of March 11, 2020; 
2. Safety and Security Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of March 16, 2020.     

 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

6. Correspondence:  
 

The meeting recessed at 1:09 p.m. due to livestream issues and reconvened at 1:19 p.m.  
 

        6.1 Proclamation “Building Safety Month” May 2020 
 

112/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council proclaim May 2020 as Building Safety Month.   

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

   6.2 Removal of property from the City of Penticton Heritage Registry  
   Re: 452 Lakeshore Drive  
 

113/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council remove the property located at 452 Lakeshore Drive from the City of Penticton 
Heritage Registry.    

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 

- 2 -



    
Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting  Page 3 of 7 
 
 

  6.3 Penticton Farmers’ Market  
 

114/2020 It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council refer the correspondence from the Penticton Farmers’ Market dated May 3, 
2020 to Emergency Operations Centre.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7. Staff Reports: 
 

7.1  Ellis Creek Master Plan   
   

115/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council respond to the issues raised by Cantex in their letter of February 12, 2020 and in 
their presentation at the Committee of the Whole on March 3, 2020 with respect to the Ellis Creek 
Master Plan by: 
1. Requesting Cantex to complete, at their cost, a Riparian Area Regulations Report and 

Environmental Assessment Report encompassing Ellis Creek along the Cantex property 
extents to determine the Stream Side Protection Area and the Environmental protection 
area required for the proposed industrial park plan; 

2. That the two above noted documents be submitted to the City and the Province of BC 
to determine if they are acceptable as per the BC reg. 178/2019 Riparian Areas 
Protection Regulation and City Riparian Area and Environmental Development Permit 
Area guidelines; and 

3. That should Cantex decide to proceed with their subdivision development, after hearing 
from the Province of BC and the City about the status of their Riparian Area Regulations 
Report and Environmental Assessment Report, that the City sole source to Stantec 
Consulting Ltd. a $165,000 contract to complete a full Predesign Report, including 
discussions with the Penticton Indian Band, for the reach of Ellis Creek through the 
Cantex property as outlined in the Stantec letter proposal of November 22, 2019. 

AND THAT the 2021 capital budget consider the $165,000 required for the predesign. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
116/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve the Ellis Creek Master Plan dated March 18, 2020 (Attachment A), as a 
guiding document which includes the amendments suggested by the Penticton Creek and 
Ellis Creek Restoration Committee at their March 11, 2020 meeting. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

The meeting recessed at 2:40 p.m. for a 15 minute break and reconvened at 2:55 p.m. 
 

7.2  BC Transit City of Penticton Annual Operating Agreement 2020-2021   
   

117/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to execute the 2020 - 2021 Annual 
Operating Agreement Conventional and Custom Transit as contained in Attachment ”A”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 

- 3 -



    
Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting  Page 4 of 7 
 
 

7.3  Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 2020-10 
 

118/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 
2020-10”, a bylaw to provide for the borrowing of money in anticipation of revenue; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 2020-10”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7.4  Property Tax Grant 
      

119/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approve the following resolution under sections 20(2) and 21(a) of the 
Community Charter: 
The taxpayers and residents of the City are living with the COVID-19 pandemic, and Council 
anticipates various levels of provincial orders and guidelines over the remainder of the 2020 
tax year that can only be enforced by the Province and not by the City under BC law. 
Accordingly, in order to see that social distancing, reopening, and 
other provincial requirements are properly carried out in the City, and in order to manage the 
City’s resources and property tax regime, the City under sections 20(2) and 21(a) of the 
Community Charter offers to enter and does hereby enter a partnering agreement with each 
property taxpayer that constitutes a business, under which the taxpayer executes and 
delivers a City standard form partnering agreement under section 21(a) of the Community 
Charter to provide an activity, facility, work or similar service on behalf of the City, including 
on behalf of the City the enforcement of section 9 of COVID-19 Order 084 of the Province, the 
COVID-19 Guidelines of the Provincial Health Officer, and other provincial orders and 
guidelines governing social distancing, isolation and reopening in relation to the business 
and the premises of the business.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7.5  Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2020-16  
      

120/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2020-16”, a bylaw 
that establishes property taxation rates for the 2020 tax year; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2020-16”. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Regehr, Opposed 

 
7.6  Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-15 

Re: Appendix 7, 25, 29 – Utility Fees 
      

121/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2020-15”, a bylaw which reduces applicable utility rates by 10% in order to provide the 
prompt payment discount for all rate payers; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-15”. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Bloomfield, Opposed 

- 4 -



    
Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting  Page 5 of 7 
 
 

7.7  Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-17 
Re: Business Licensing and Building Permitting Fees 

      
122/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw 
No. 2020-17”, a bylaw that temporarily reduces certain fees & charges relating to business 
licensing and building permitting due to COVID-19; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-17”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7.8  Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734 
Development Permit PL2020-8732 
Re: 285 Westminster Avenue West  

      
123/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734”, for Lot 1 District Lot 4 
Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan EPP99696, located at 285 
Westminster Avenue West, a permit to vary Section 6.1.5.3 of Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08, to 
increase the maximum percentage (%) of off-street small car parking spaces from 25% to 44%;  
AND THAT staff be directed to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734”; 
AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734”, 
approve “Development Permit PL2020-8732”, for 285 Westminster Avenue West, a permit to 
allow for the construction of a 5-storey mixed-use development featuring 75 residential units 
and approximately2,400sq. ft. of ground floor commercial retail space. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
7.9  Development Permit PL2019-8654 

Re: 3352 Hemlock Street 
      

124/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2019-8654”, for Lot 1 District Lot 189 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan KAP90435, located at 3352 Hemlock Street, a permit 
to allow for the construction of a 6-storey, 165-unit apartment building; 
AND THAT Council approve, through the issuance of “Development Permit PL2019-8654”, in 
accordance with Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08, Section 5.1.4.3, a minor 
variance to at-grade amenity area requirements, that does not reduce at-grade amenity 
space to less than 10% of the total required amenity area; 
AND THAT staff be directed to issue “Development Permit PL2019-8654”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

7.10  Development Variance Permit PL2020-8720 
Re: 1384 Commercial Way 

      
125/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council deny “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8720”, for Lot 6 District Lot 3821S 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 17297, located at 1384 Commercial Way, a permit to allow 
razor wire fencing. 

DEFEATED  
Mayor Vassilaki, Councillors Bloomfield, Regehr, and Watt, Opposed 

- 5 -



    
Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting  Page 6 of 7 
 
 

126/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8720”, for Lot 6 District Lot 3821S 
Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 17297, located at 1384 Commercial Way, a permit to allow 
razor wire fencing. 

CARRIED 
Councillors Kimberley, Robinson, and Sentes, Opposed  

 
8. Bylaws and Permits:  

 
8.1  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08 
 Development Permit PL2019-8613      
 Re: 352 Winnipeg Street 
 

127/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08”; 
AND THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2019-8613”.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
8.2  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09 
 Re: 2301 Baskin Street 
 

128/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

8.3  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-12 
 Re: 130 and 152 Greenwood Drive 
 

129/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08”; 
AND THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08”.  

CARRIED 
Councillor Robinson, Opposed 

 
8.4  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-13 
 Re: 418 Scott Avenue 
 

130/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-13”. 

DEFEATED 
Mayor Vassilaki, Councillors Regehr, Robinson, and Sentes, Opposed 

 
131/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 

THAT Council close and abandon “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-13”. 
CARRIED 

Councillor Kimberley, Opposed 
 
 
 
 

- 6 -



    
Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting  Page 7 of 7 
 
 

8.5  Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-14 
 Re: 154 Brunswick Street 
 

132/2020  It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-14”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

9. Council Round Table  
 

10. Adjournment to a Closed Meeting:  
 

133/2020   It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Council adjourn at 5:04 p.m. to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of 
the Community Charter as follows: Section 90 (1) 
(c)        labour relations or other employee relations; 
Section 90 (2) (c)   a matter that is being investigated under the Ombudsperson Act of which 
the municipality has been notified under section 14 [Ombudsperson to notify authority] of 
that Act. 

   CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   
 

Certified correct:      Confirmed: 
 

  
 
 

____________________________ ______________________________ 
Angie Collison  John Vassilaki  
Corporate Officer  Mayor 

  
 

- 7 -



 
May 11, 2020 
 
 
Mayor John Vassilaki and Council   
171 Main Street  
Penticton,   BC   V2A 5A9 
  
 
Dear Mayor Vassilaki and Council 
 
 
 
As organizers of the highly successful BC Seniors’ Week 2019, we were looking forward to 
bringing BC Seniors’ Week 2020 back to our community in June.  Plans for a bigger and better 
week of celebrating were well underway, however, due to COVID-19 outbreak, the event 
celebrating seniors and their contributions has been cancelled and will be rescheduled for June 
2021.  
 
 
Although the event is not going ahead this year the Penticton Seniors Community Action 
Committee would like to extend thanks to Council for their enthusiastic and generous support for 
this undertaking.  It is appreciated.       
 
 
Despite the fact, the event is cancelled, we would still like the week acknowledged.  It is our 
request that Council proclaim June 1 – 8, 2020 BC Seniors’ Week in Penticton.  If the 
proclamation were also announced in a press release more seniors in our community would be 
made aware of the appreciation Council has for our seniors. 
 
  
Thank you for your ongoing support and your consideration of our request. 
 
 
 
Yours truly, 
 
Mignonne Wood 
President, Penticton Seniors’ Drop-In Centre Sociey  
Elmie Saaltink 
Chair, South Okanagan Seniors’ Wellness Society 
Myrna Tischer 
Program Coordinator, Better at Home, One Sky Community Resources 

cc. Elmie Saaltink; Myrna Tischer; Sue Premack; Wendy Stewart; Tina Begg,  Adam Goodwin 

- 8 -



 

 
Proclamation 

 

   

 
 

Seniors’ Week 
June 1 – 8, 2020 

 

 
 

WHEREAS: Seniors are a diverse population within a society that supports its members 
throughout the life continuum, and recognizes individual rights to dignity, 
respect, autonomy and choice, and  

 
WHEREAS: Seniors in British Columbia through their various contributions have helped 

to establish a province which reflects a unique, economic, cultural and ethnic 
heritage, and  

 
WHEREAS: The Government of British Columbia is committed to ensuring that the 

voices of seniors are heard, and that seniors are valued as partners in shaping 
the future of this province,  

 
 
AND WHEREAS: Seniors’ Week is a time to acknowledge the diversity of seniors and to 

increase public awareness of their vital role in British Columbia Society. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE I, Mayor John Vassilaki, DO HEREBY PROCLAIM June 1 – 8, 2020 as “Seniors’ 
Week” in the City of Penticton. 
 
 
 

    
       Mayor John Vassilaki 

- 9 -



Slackwater Brewing 

218 Martin St. 

Penticton BC 

V2A 5K3 

7th May 2020 

 

 

RE: Variance to Martin Street Storefront Bylaw – Parts 8 and 9 

 

Dear Mayor & Council, 

 

I am writing on behalf of Slackwater Brewing to request a variance to parts 8 

and 9 to the Martin Street Storefront Bylaw.  

 

Our cedar decking and fenced patio was constructed with the knowledge of the 

city and our architect and was signed off during our occupancy inspection. 

Post-occupancy, it was brought to my attention by the City Building Manager 

that the fencing around the patio was not in compliance with the aforementioned 

bylaw. Both the building inspectors and architect were unaware of the bylaw at 

the time.  

 

I understand that there is an aesthetic variance from the building permit 
submission, however, there were several other changes (internal) that were of 
no issue or concern. The decision to build the whole deck out of cedar tied the 

patio into the building design and matches the cedar banding on the Martin St 
elevation of the building.  

 

We feel that our patio is a great addition to the 200 block of Martin St, 

animated with happy guests, bright umbrellas during the summer months - a 

beacon on our block, in our humble opinion. As individuals and business owners, 

we should be allowed to express our building and brand aesthetic. Enforcing a 

material change to our building during the current economic climate is 

unfeasible and hope that the mayor, council and city staff will permit a 

variance so that we may have our patio available for summer. Encouraging patio 

and al fresco dining appears to be a pillar of Dr. Bonnie Henry’s post-COVID 

reality, so we feel it is important to maintain our patio, status quo, as a 

viable option for Penticton diners as relief from restrictions is now on the 

horizon. 

 

Thank you for your time and consideration and I look forward to hearing from 

you. I hope everyone, their friends and family, have stayed safe and healthy 

through these trying times. 

 

Kind regards, 

 

 

 

Liam Peyton 

Co-Founder, General & Marketing Manager 

Slackwater Brewing 

- 10 -



 

- 11 -



The City of North Vancouver  
OFFICE OF MAYOR LINDA BUCHANAN 

 

141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, BC  V7M 1H9  |  Tel: 604-998-3280  |  Fax: 604-990-4211  |  www.cnv.org  |  DOC#1908249 

May 8, 2020 
 
Hon. David Eby 
Room 232 Parliament Buildings 
501 Belleville St. 
Victoria, BC V8V 1X4 
 
Dear Minister Eby: 
 
RE: Supporting Businesses by Making Liquor Licensing More Flexible 
 
As Mayor of the City of North Vancouver I want to start by thanking you for the work you have 
done to serve British Columbians.  
 
I appreciate how quickly your government has responded to the needs of people and 
businesses. This pandemic has highlighted, among other things, the agility and speed of our 
public service when they are needed urgently.  
 
It is with that same urgency I ask you to consider examining how we can increase flexibility in 
outdoor seating and liquor licensing in support of our businesses.  
 
I have been hosting business round tables to learn about the unique needs of our business 
sectors. From these conversations I have learned of a few actions that could be taken 
immediately to ensure restaurants, pubs, and breweries can be resilient businesses as we 
begin to re-open gradually. 
 
As you are aware, the current liquor licensing regulations for pubs, breweries and restaurants 
requires only permanent changes when adding potential capacity such as increased outdoor 
patio space.  
 
Our City is in the process of revising our outdoor dining process to allow these businesses to 
expand their patio areas on a temporary basis as we begin BC’s restart plan. This will assist 
these businesses to be able to serve customers on their premises while meeting safe 
distancing requirements.  
 
My understanding is that the current provincial licensing requirements will not permit 
temporary changes, therefore I am concerned this will negatively impact these businesses 
and discourage many from being able to open up to serve the public on their premises.  
 
Changing this model to allow greater flexibility could be the difference in countless businesses 
being able to keep their doors open and expanding their service from their current significantly 
reduced levels.  
 
We have seen new challenges like never before, and your government has acted swiftly to 
deliver results. I urge you to consider what I have detailed to you in this letter. We now know 

- 12 -



 

 The City of North Vancouver   2 

changes can happen quickly when they are needed, and these changes are needed 
immediately to support our food and liquor industry. 
 
Do not hesitate to contact me if you require additional information. I thank you in advance for 
your consideration.   
 
Yours Truly, 
 

  
Linda Buchanan  
Mayor of the City of North Vancouver 
 
c.c. All B.C. municipal governments 

Bowinn Ma, MLA for North Vancouver-Lonsdale 
BC Restaurant & Food Services Association 
Alliance of Beverage Licensees 
BC Craft Brewer’s Guild 
North Vancouver Chamber of Commerce 
Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Association 

- 13 -



^°T^
^ .^2L. '^

^ ^
o. ^1^ ^
^ VsssS^sssSSf ^

^o,BP^
2020-May-13

Via email: AG.Minister@Qov.bc.ca

Honourable David Eby, Q.C.

Attorney General

Parliament Buildings (Room 232)
Victoria/ BC V8V 1X4

Dear Minister Eby,

Re: Supporting Businesses by Making Liquor Licensing More Flexible

At the Special Council meeting of 2020-May-ll, the City of Nanaimo Mayor and Council, by way
of motion, unanimously supported the City of North Vancouver - Mayor Linda Buchanan's letter

of May 8, 2020 regarding the request for flexibility with the liquor licensing regulations for
businesses who are looking to expand their outdoor seating area as BC begins its COVD-19 Phase
2 restart plan with enhanced protocols.

Council's motion reads as follows:

"It was moved and seconded that Council direct Mayor Krog to write a letter in support of
the City of North Vancouver's request to Honourable David Eby, Q.C. supporting businesses by

making liquor licensing more flexible."

The City of Nanaimo firmly believes if the province can provide pliancy, in these unprecedented
times, to amend the current liquor licensing regulations community businesses will have a better

chance of success.

Sincerely,

Leonard Krog
MAYOR

ec: Mayor Linda Buchanan, City of North Vancouver, mavorfacnv.ora

All BC municipal governments
MLA Sheila Malcolmson, sheila.malcolmson.mla@lea.bc.ca

MLA Doug Routley, douglas.routley.mla@leg.bc.ca

Michelle Stilwell, michelle.stilwell.mla@leg.bc.ca
Nanaimo Chamber of Commerce, ceo@nanaimochamber.bc.a

CITY HALL, 455 WALLACE STREET, NANAIMO, BRITISH COLUMBIA, CANADA V9R 5J6
TELEPHONE (250) 755-4400 • WEBSITE: WWW.NANAIMO.CA • FAX (250) 754-8263

- 14 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 19, 2020        File No:     
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Angela Campbell, Controller 
Subject: 2019 Audited Financial Statements 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council accept the Financial Statements as co-presented by BDO Canada LLP and the Chief Financial 
Officer for the year ending December 31, 2019. 

Background 

Per the Community Charter Section 167, municipal financial statements for the year must be prepared by 
the financial officer and presented to Council for acceptance. 

Section 171 of the Community Charter requires that the municipal auditor report to Council on the annual 
financial statements of the municipality. 

The City’s Financial Statements are prepared according to Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS) and 
report the actual use of City resources in the past year in comparison to the original Council approved 
Financial Plan.   Upon consolidation, PSAS requires the City to eliminate entries for transactions including 
but not limited to inter-fund transactions and reserve transfers.  The Financial Statements vary from the 
City’s approved Financial Plan due to the eliminating entries, removal of debt repayments and the recording 
of Tangible Capital Assets as non-financial assets.  

Financial Implication 

The Consolidated Surplus for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 is $11,082,066 an increase of 
$1,873,726 over the 2018 consolidated surplus of $9,208,340.  

Overall consolidated revenues grew slightly (1.14% increase) from 2018 to a total of $121,138,444 while 
consolidated expenditures decreased by .45% from 2018 to a total of $110,056,378. 

Overall the financial position of the City remains strong with net financial assets of $42.6 million and non-
financial assets of $324 million. 

 Some specific significant highlights from the statements include:  

• Financial Assets  
o Increase in cash/investments of $12M 

- 15 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 2 

• Financial Liabilities  
o Decrease in long term debt of $3.4M 

• Revenues 
o One-time increase in Gas Tax funding $1.5M 
o Increase in investment revenues $1M 
o Recovery of $386,000 of Casino revenues that had decreased by $436,000 in the prior year 
o Prior year had land sales proceeds of $846,000, none in 2019 
o Prior year had recovery of $600,000 of emergency related costs from the Province related 

to flood and other response activities, none in 2019 
o Prior year had contributed assets of $2.0 million relating to development projects, $12,000 

contributed assets in 2019 
• Expenses: 

o Increase in Policing costs of $500,000 
o Prior year Carmi substation upgrade project cost of $1.5 million, this accounts for the 

current year reduction in Electrical Supply  
• Reserves: 

o Overall increase in reserves of $9.6M 
o Decrease in Own Reserves $2M 
o Increase in Statutory Reserves $9.4M 
o Transfers between Own and Statutory reserves of $6.8M (Council approved in early 2019) 
o Increase in DCC reserves $2M 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Management Letter  

Attachment B – Audit Report 

Attachment C – Draft Financial Statements 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Angela Campbell 
Controller 
 

 

Chief Financial Officer 
 
 

JWB 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

 
DvD 

 

 

- 16 -



- 17 -



- 18 -



- 19 -



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Mayor and Council of the Corporation of the City of Penticton

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Penticton and its controlled
entities (the “Consolidated Entity”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2019, and the consolidated statement of operations, the consolidated statement of
change in net financial assets and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Consolidated Entity as at December 31, 2019, and its
consolidated results of operations, its consolidated change in net financial assets, and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Consolidated Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Unaudited Information

We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the
supplementary schedules on pages 22 through 35 of the City of the City of Penticton’s Financial
Statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Consolidated Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Consolidated Entity’s financial
reporting process.
D
R
A
F
T
 -
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W

Independent Auditor’s Report

D
R
A
F
T
 -
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Penticton and its controlledWe have audited the financial statements of the Corporation of the City of Penticton and its controlled
entities (the “Consolidated Entity”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position asentities (the “Consolidated Entity”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as

the consolidated statement ofthe consolidated statement of
for the year then ended, andfor the year then ended, and

notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all materialIn our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Consolidated Entity as at December 31, 2019, and itsrespects, the consolidated financial position of the Consolidated Entity as at December 31, 2019, and its
consolidated results of operations, its consolidated change in net financial assets, and its consolidatedconsolidated results of operations, its consolidated change in net financial assets, and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. OurWe conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in theresponsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial StatementsAudit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the section of our report. We are independent of theAudit of the Consolidated Financial StatementsAudit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of theConsolidated Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities inconsolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientaccordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We have not audited, reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of theWe have not audited, reviewed or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the
supplementary schedules on pages 22 through 35 of the City of the City of Penticton’s Financialsupplementary schedules on pages 22 through 35 of the City of the City of Penticton’s Financial

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated FinancialResponsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financialManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal controlstatements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statementsas management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing theIn preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related toConsolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends togoing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Consolidated Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.liquidate the Consolidated Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Consolidated Entity’s financialThose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Consolidated Entity’s financial

- 20 -



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Consolidated Entity’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Consolidated Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Consolidated Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants

Penticton, British Columbia
May 5, 2020

D
R
A
F
T
 -
 F

O
R
 R

E
V
IE

W
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statementsOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’sas a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranteereport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will alwaysthat an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and aredetect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influenceconsidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exerciseAs part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, andwhether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The riskobtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fromof not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or theerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduresObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on thethat are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Consolidated Entity’s internal control.effectiveness of the Consolidated Entity’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountingEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events orbased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a goingconditions that may cast significant doubt on the Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in ourconcern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if suchauditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidencedisclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause theobtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Consolidated Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.Consolidated Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent theincluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities orObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Consolidated Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financialbusiness activities within the Consolidated Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plannedWe communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies inscope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.internal control that we identify during our audit.

- 21 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018

Financial Assets 

Cash $ 6,113,656 $ 7,623,410

Term Deposits (Note 1) 98,229,334 84,097,897

Accounts Receivable (Note 2) 10,293,510 11,216,855

114,636,500 102,938,162

Financial Liabilities 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 13,523,160 14,594,055

Development Cost Charges (Note 3) 17,825,761 15,657,283

Deferred Revenue 6,195,860 5,590,939

Deposits 3,509,106 4,105,303

Long Term Debt (Note 9) 30,980,819 34,373,676

72,034,706 74,321,256

Net Financial Assets $ 42,601,794 $ 28,616,906

Non-Financial Assets 

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) $319,836,475 $322,516,179

Inventory 3,554,394 3,806,292

Prepaid Expenses 529,972 501,192

323,920,841 326,823,663

Accumulated Surplus $366,522,635 $355,440,569

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

1

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 22 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019

Budget

(Note 14) 2019 2018

Revenue 

Taxation (Note 17) $ 33,937,395 $ 33,975,415 $ 32,206,019

Sales of Services 68,050,216 70,096,334 69,631,879

Government Grants and Transfers (Note 15) 2,410,315 3,863,313 2,981,154

Other Revenue 7,681,182 10,690,252 9,339,446

Other Contributions 2,432,076 2,438,716 3,448,277

Gain on Disposal  30,000 62,414 133,843

Contributed Asset  - 12,000 2,021,239

114,541,184 121,138,444 119,761,857

Expenditure (Note 11)

General Government 10,558,481 19,635,410 19,033,265

Protective Services 16,731,306 16,675,134 15,967,295

Transportation Services 5,839,571 9,868,392 10,823,613

Environmental Health Services 1,850,857 1,897,990 1,735,059

Public Health and Safety 275,000 244,253 231,941

Environmental Development Services 3,774,195 3,466,906 3,652,838

Recreation and Culture 10,973,017 12,040,690 12,127,262

Electrical Supply 33,985,196 35,680,839 37,215,864

Sewer System Utility 3,937,863 5,585,922 5,209,151

Water Utility Services 3,466,538 4,960,842 4,557,229

91,392,024 110,056,378 110,553,517

Annual Surplus 23,149,160 11,082,066 9,208,340

Accumulated Surplus, Beginning of Year 355,440,569 355,440,569 346,232,229

Accumulated Surplus, End of Year $378,589,729 $366,522,635 $355,440,569

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 23 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

2019

Budget 2019 2018

Annual surplus $ 23,149,160 $ 11,082,066 $ 9,208,340

Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) (20,743,635) (11,555,786) (20,968,033)

Amortization  (Note 10) - 14,218,490 13,846,173

Net Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) - 29,000 817,727

Contributed Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) - (12,000) (2,021,239)

Asset reclassification (Note 10) - - 217,783

 2,405,525 13,761,770 1,100,751

Change in Prepaid Expenses (Increase) - (28,780) 95,346

Consumption of Supplies Inventories - 251,898 (170,020)

 - 223,118 (74,674)

 

Increase in Net Financial Assets 2,405,525 13,984,888 1,026,077

Net Financial Assets, Beginning of Year 28,616,906 28,616,906 27,590,829

Net Financial Assets, End of Year $ 31,022,431 $ 42,601,794 $ 28,616,906

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 24 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018

Operating Transactions 

Annual Surplus $ 11,082,066 $ 9,208,340

Change in Non-Cash Operating Items 

(Increase) decrease in Accounts Receivable 923,345 132,837

Decrease in Trade Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (1,070,895) (950,330)

Increase in Development Cost Charges 2,168,478 1,067,316

Increase in Deferred Revenues 604,921 216,373

Decrease in Deposits (596,197) (500,372)

(Increase) decrease in Prepaid Expenses (28,780) 95,346

(Increase) decrease  in Inventory 251,898 (170,020)

Net Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 29,000 817,727

Amortization 14,218,490 13,846,173

Contributed Tangible Capital Assets (12,000) (2,021,239)

Asset reclassification - 217,782

 16,488,260 12,751,593

Cash Provided by Operating Activities 27,570,326 21,959,933

Capital Transactions 

Cash Used to Acquire Tangible Capital Assets (11,555,786) (20,968,033)

Financing Transactions 

Debt Proceeds - 1,530,000

Debt Repayment (3,392,857) (4,329,729)

Investing Transactions 

(Increase) decrease in Term Deposits (14,131,437) 3,701,186

Change in Cash (1,509,754) 1,893,357

Cash, Beginning of Year 7,623,410 5,730,053

Cash, End of Year $ 6,113,656 $ 7,623,410

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 2019 2018

Interest Paid $ 1,806,219 $ 2,717,396

Note: Investment income recognized includes an actuarial addition to the sinking fund

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

4

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 25 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DECEMBER 31, 2019

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements of the City are the responsibility of management.  They have been prepared in

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of

the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.  The Corporation of the City of Penticton ("the City") is a municipality in

the Province of British Columbia and operates under the provisions of the Community Charter.  The City provides municipal

services such as fire, public works, planning, parks, recreation and other general government services.

Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of all municipal organizations,

committees and Boards which are owned or controlled by the City.  All inter-entity transactions and balances have been

eliminated.  The controlled organizations include:

Penticton Public Library

Deferred Revenue 

Funds received for specific purposes which are externally restricted by legislation, regulation or agreement and are not

available for general municipal purposes are accounted for as deferred revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position.  The revenue is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the year in which it is used for the

specified purpose.

Revenue Recognition 

Taxation  

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they meet the definition of an asset, have been authorized and the

taxable event occurs.  For property taxes, the taxable event is the period for which the tax is levied.  Taxes receivable are

recognized net of an allowance for anticipated uncollected amounts.

Government Transfers  

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the financial statements when the transfer is authorized and any

eligibility criteria are met, except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the

definition of a liability.  Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability.

Transfer revenue is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Utilities  

Charges for sewer and water usage are recorded as user fees.  Connection fee revenues are recognized when the

connection has been established. Conditional grant revenue is recognized to the extent the conditions imposed on it

have been fulfilled.

5

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 26 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DECEMBER 31, 2019

Revenue Recognition continued 

Fee for Service  

Sales of service and other revenue is recognized on an accrual basis.

Inventory

The City holds consumable inventory which is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Cost is determined on

a weighted average basis.

Tangible Capital Assets 

Tangible capital assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the provision of goods and

services.  They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of

operations.

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, net of capital asset disposals, write-downs and amortization.  Cost includes all

costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of the tangible capital asset including transportation costs,

installation costs, design and engineering fees, legal fees and site preparation costs.  Contributed tangible capital assets are

recorded at fair value at the time of the donation, with a corresponding amount recorded as revenue.  The City holds several

works of art and historic treasures that have not been included in the tangible capital assets, including displays at the

museum and various works of art and decorations in the facilities.  Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the

estimated life of the tangible capital asset commencing once the asset is available for productive use as follows:

Buildings 20 to 70 years

Roads and Sidewalks 25 to 75 years

Machinery and Equipment 5 to 20 years

Water Infrastructure 50 to 100 years

Sewer Infrastructure 10 to 100 years

Electrical Infrastructure 20 to 50 years

Parks and Recreation Infrastructure 10 to 50 years

Vehicles 10 to 20 years

Furniture and Equipment 10 to 20 years

Computer Hardware and Software 4 to 10 years

Books and Library Materials 5 to 13 years

Construction in progress

No amortization

taken

6

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 27 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DECEMBER 31, 2019

Retirement  and Employee Benefits

The City's retirement contributions due during the period to its multi-employer defined benefit plan are expensed as

incurred.

City employees belonging to CUPE local 608 are eligble to accumulate sick leave until termination of employment.  Unused

sick leave is not eligible for payment upon retirement or termination and may not be used as vacation.  Employees may

accumulate a maximum of 10 days of sick leave.  

Reserve for Future Expenditure 

Reserves for future expenditure are non-statutory reserves which represent an appropriation of surplus for specific

purposes.  Transfers to reserves for future expenditure include funds to finance incomplete projects and accumulations for

specific purposes.

Statutory Reserve Funds 

The use of these funds is restricted by the Community Charter and associated Municipal Bylaws.  Statutory reserve funds are

funded 100% by cash and temporary investments.

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Public sector accounting standards requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could

differ from management's best estimates as additional information becomes available in the future.  Adjustments, if any, will

be reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period that the change in estimate is made, as well as in the

period of settlement if the amount is different.

Collection of Taxes on Behalf of Other Taxation Authorities 

The City collects taxation revenue on behalf of other entities.  Such levies, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities

with respect to the operations of entities are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Contaminated Sites

A liability for contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and the following criteria are met:

a) An environmental standard exists

b) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard

c) The City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility for remediation

d) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

e) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recognized as management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation, maintenance and

monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site.

As at December 31, 2019 the City has no liability for contaminated sites.

7

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 28 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

1. Term Deposits 

Maturity

Date

Effective

Interest Rate

(%) 2019 2018

Valley First Feb 25, 2020 3.05 $ 6,000,000 $ -

Valley First Feb 27, 2020 2.70 5,000,000 -

Valley First Feb 27, 2020 2.70 3,000,000 -

Valley First Aug 9, 2020 2.40 5,000,000 -

Valley First Aug 17, 2020 2.45 6,168,541 -

Valley First Dec 3, 2020 2.50 5,000,000 -

Valley First Aug 9, 2021 2.45 5,000,000 -

Valley First Dec 3, 2022 2.60 8,000,000 -

Valley First Aug 17, 2023 3.05 5,152,500 -

Valley First n/a - 11,908,293 -

Canaccord May 19, 2020 2.35 10,000,000 -

Canaccord May 19, 2020 2.55 4,000,000 -

Canaccord May 17, 2021 2.80 1,000,000 -

Canaccord May 17, 2021 2.90 7,000,000 -

Canaccord May 17, 2021 2.80 6,000,000 -

Canaccord Aug 17, 2022 2.50 5,000,000 -

Canaccord Aug 17, 2024 2.80 2,500,000 -

Canaccord Aug 17, 2024 2.75 2,500,000 -

Valley First Redemptions - - 57,054,750

Municipal Finance Authority - - 27,043,147

 $ 98,229,334 $ 84,097,897

8

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 29 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

2. Accounts Receivable 

2019 2018

Property Taxes $ 1,237,588 $ 956,826

Other Receivables 1,957,233 3,468,399

Federal Government 218,107 266,759

Provincial Government 617,235 1,117,793

Regional District Okanagan Similkameen 103 167,580

Other Government Agencies 63,927 50,131

Utility Rates Receivable 4,920,631 4,764,047

Accrued Interest Receivable 1,271,140 402,634

Cemetery Trust Fund Receivable 7,546 22,686

 $ 10,293,510 $ 11,216,855

3. Development Cost Charges (DCC) 

The City collects development cost charges to pay for a proportionate share of infrastructure related to new growth.  In

accordance with the Local Government Act of BC, these funds must be deposited into a separate reserve fund.  When

the related costs are incurred, the DCCs are recognized as revenue.

2019 2018

DCC by Type 

Roads DCC $ 2,028,043 $ 1,831,008

Parks DCC 1,017,251 833,394

Drainage DCC 451,100 328,395

Waste Water DCC 9,936,906 8,632,969

Water DCC 4,392,461 4,031,517

 17,825,761 15,657,283

DCC Activity 

Balance, Beginning of Year 15,657,283 14,589,967

Return on Investments 287,495 264,877

DCCs Levied in the Year 2,082,890 1,239,738

Transfers to General Operating and Capital (201,907) (437,299)

 $ 17,825,761 $ 15,657,283

9

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 30 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

4. Development Cost Charges Reductions 

In 2010, Council adopted the Development Cost Charge Reduction Bylaw and the companion Economic Incentive Zone

Bylaw.  The purpose of these bylaws was to spur development in key areas of the City, promote sustainable

development and promote the development of affordable rental housing. The bylaws also contain provisions to

encourage high-end hotel development.  These bylaws will reduce the value of development cost charges, building

permit fees and municipal taxes received by The City of Penticton for eligible developments.

The DCC reductions and Economic Incentive tax exemption program have been implemented in accordance with the

provisions of Section 933(1) of the Local Government Act and Section 226 of the Community Charter, respectively.  In

2019 $357,149 (2018 - $390,373) of Economic Incentive tax exemptions were granted.  In addition, Council approved

$138,292 (2018 - $910,736) of DCC reductions in 2019.

5. Deferred Revenue 

Funds received for specific purposes which are externally restricted by legislation, regulation or agreement and are not

available for general municipal purposes are accounted for as Deferred Revenue on the Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position.  The revenue is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of operations in the year in which it is used

for the specified purpose. Deferred Revenue is comprised of the following:

Taxes Rec Other Total

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 4,503,159 $ 224,461 $ 863,319 $ 5,590,939

Collected 9,374,946 703,199 593,741 10,671,886

Recognized (8,841,412) (677,004) (548,549) (10,066,965)

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 5,036,693 $ 250,656 $ 908,511 $ 6,195,860

10

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 31 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

6. Pension Liability 

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly trusteed pension plan.  The

Board of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for administering the Plan, including

investment of the assets and administration of benefits.  The Plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan.

Basic pension benefits are based on a formula.  As at December 31, 2018, the Plan has about 205,000 active members

and approximately 101,000 retired members.  Active members include approximately 40,000 contributors from local

governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan and adequacy of plan

funding.  The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the Plan.

The actuary's calculated contribution rate is based on the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term

rate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for the average future entrants to the plan.

This rate may be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the amortization

of any unfunded actuarial liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2018 indicated a $2,866 million funding surplus for basic

pension benefits on a going concern basis.  

The City of Penticton paid $2,170,449 (2018 - $2,104,076) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 2019.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021 with results available in 2022. 

Employers participating in the Plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made during

the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting).  This is because the Plan records accrued liabilities and

accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets

and cost to individual employers participating in the Plan.

7. Contingent Liabilities 

a. Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen  

Under Section 836 of the Local Government Act, all monies borrowed by a Regional District, shall be upon its

credit at large and shall, in the event of any default, constitute an indebtedness of the member municipalities for

which they are jointly and severally liable.  At December 31, 2019, the long term debt of the Regional District

aggregated $75,748,289 (2018 - $79,084,988).

11

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 32 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

7. Contingent Liabilities continued 

b. Legal Actions  

As at December 31, 2019, certain legal actions are pending against the City as follows:

1. The City is aware of various liens registered against the City owned properties located at 903-969 Eckhardt

Ave W. These liens were filed by various companies engaged by the third party purchaser of the same properties

who subsequently defaulted on the purchase.  These companies were not paid and they filed liens against the

properties. Twelve liens were filed representing claims totaling $2,111,921.90. Since then, and within the one year

limitation period under the Builders Lien Act, five lien claimants had started legal actions against various parties,

including the City, and filed certificates of pending litigation ("CPL") against the properties. One claimant has

subsequently abandoned its lien claim and discontinued its action and another claimant reached a settlement.

The remaining three claims remain alive with the value of these lien claims totaling $663,851. It is unknown at this

time the likely outcome; however, damages could reach $66,000, which is 10% of the total claims still being

advanced.

2. The City has been named a party to an action with respect to a claim made for interference with

development rights.  The Claimant may have a reasonable basis for a claim; however given the uncertainty of the

amount and likeliness of the claim, no accrual has been recorded in regards to these costs.

c. General Contingencies  

From time to time there are potential claims against the City for incidents which arise in the ordinary course of

business. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the outcomes of the claims are not determinable at

this time and cannot be estimated. Should any loss result from the resolution of these claims, such loss will be

charged to operations in the year of resolution.

8. Letters of Credit 

In addition to the performance deposits reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the City is holding

irrevocable Letters of Credit in the amount of $664,938 which were received from depositors to ensure their

performance of works to be undertaken within the City.  These amounts are not reflected in the Consolidated Financial

Statements but are available to satisfy liabilities arising from non-performance by the depositors.

12

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 33 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

9. Long Term Debt 

Long term debt reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is comprised of the following:

2019 2018

Long Term Debt $ 30,980,819 $ 34,373,676

Principal repayments relating to long term debt of $30,980,819 outstanding are due as follows (in thousands):

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Thereafter

Sinking

Fund

General Fund $ 1,346 $ 1,215 $ 1,215 $ 1,218 $ 915 $ 3,277 $ 6,142

Sewer Fund 539 539 539 539 539 2,356 4,023

Water Fund 422 422 422 422 422 1,506 2,962

 $ 2,307 $ 2,176 $ 2,176 $ 2,179 $ 1,876 $ 7,139 $ 13,127

Long term debt is secured by the assets of the City. The Long Term Debt is held by the Municipal Finance Authority. The

principal payments are invested by the Municipal Finance Authority into a Sinking Fund. The principal repayments are

currently calculated at a rate of 2.5%. The 2019 earnings in the Sinking Fund were calculated to be $1,060,511 and are

included in Other Revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

10. Tangible Capital Assets 

The City of Penticton budgets for Tangible Capital Assets (TCA) as well as non-operating repairs and maintenance

through the capital budget.  During the year, the City incurred $17,461,473 of expenditures that fall within the Capital

Budget.  Of this amount, $11,404,021 met the TCA capitalization policy criteria while the remaining $6,057,452 was

expensed due to the expenditure being outside the TCA capitalization policy criteria or they were related to repairs and

maintenance.

13

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 34 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

10. Tangible Capital Assets continued 

Land Building Equipment

Sewer

Infrastructure

Water

Infrastructure

Electrical

Infrastructure Roads

Construction

in Progress

2019

Total

COST 

Opening Balance $ 52,381,359 $ 166,727,589 $ 44,118,377 $ 54,760,269 $ 59,058,201 $ 79,195,259 $ 91,949,590 $ 2,034,141 $550,224,785

Add: Additions - 1,851,292 2,466,157 737,132 853,496 935,875 2,105,293 2,606,539 11,555,784

Add: Trsf to/from Construction in Progress - 590,092 - - - 1,232,956 - (1,823,048) -

Add: Contributed Assets 12,000 - - - - - - - 12,000

Less: Disposals - - 352,569 - - 11,158 - - 363,727

 52,393,359 169,168,973 46,231,965 55,497,401 59,911,697 81,352,932 94,054,883 2,817,632 561,428,842

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION 

Opening Balance - 76,120,294 29,452,871 11,606,550 20,017,692 38,646,995 51,864,202 - 227,708,604

Add: Amortization - 5,048,036 2,102,122 1,108,100 908,014 2,175,669 2,876,549 - 14,218,490

Less: Acc Amortization on Disposals - - 323,569 - - 11,158 - - 334,727

 - 81,168,330 31,231,424 12,714,650 20,925,706 40,811,506 54,740,751 - 241,592,367

Net Book Value for Year Ended Dec. 31, 2019 $ 52,393,359 $ 88,000,643 $ 15,000,541 $ 42,782,751 $ 38,985,991 $ 40,541,426 $ 39,314,132 $ 2,817,632 $319,836,475

14DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 35 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

10. Tangible Capital Assets continued 

Land Building Equipment

Sewer

Infrastructure

Water

Infrastructure

Electrical

Infrastructure Roads

Construction

in Progress

2018

Total

COST 

Opening Balance $ 48,519,310 $ 164,888,807 $ 40,780,317 $ 52,295,961 $ 55,287,055 $ 74,893,453 $ 87,441,232 $ 4,731,681 $528,837,816

Add: Additions 3,930,923 2,044,798 2,989,580 1,218,242 2,759,538 1,901,777 4,149,700 1,973,475 20,968,033

Add: Trsf to/from Construction in Progress - 34,920 517,507 311,360 1,189,416 2,400,029 - (4,453,232) -

Add: Contributed Assets - - - 934,706 350,686 - 735,847 - 2,021,239

Less: Disposals 68,874 240,936 169,027 - 528,494 - 377,189 - 1,384,520

Re-classification to Financial Assets - - - - - - - (217,783) (217,783)

 52,381,359 166,727,589 44,118,377 54,760,269 59,058,201 79,195,259 91,949,590 2,034,141 550,224,785

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION 

Opening Balance - 71,318,473 27,567,519 10,508,279 19,379,927 36,527,883 49,127,144 - 214,429,225

Add: Amortization - 4,936,745 2,003,770 1,098,271 890,867 2,119,112 2,797,408 - 13,846,173

Less: Acc Amortization on Disposals - 134,924 118,418 - 253,102 - 60,350 - 566,794

 - 76,120,294 29,452,871 11,606,550 20,017,692 38,646,995 51,864,202 - 227,708,604

Net Book Value for Year Ended Dec. 31, 2018 $ 52,381,359 $ 90,607,295 $ 14,665,506 $ 43,153,719 $ 39,040,509 $ 40,548,264 $ 40,085,388 $ 2,034,141 $322,516,181

15DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 36 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

11. Reporting by Object 

2019 2018

Salaries and Benefits $ 29,837,885 $ 27,897,780

Goods and Services 50,910,359 51,773,399

Interest 1,806,219 2,717,396

Amortization 14,218,490 13,846,173

Other Expenses 1,911,656 2,285,572

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 3,844,906 5,002,150

Policing Agreement 7,526,863 7,031,047

 $ 110,056,378 $ 110,553,517

12. Credit Facilities 

a. Line of Credit  

The City holds a $5,000,000 line of credit with the Valley First Credit Union.  This line of credit has a borrowing rate

of prime and is secured by the Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw 2011 No. 5003.  

As of December 31, 2019 there was no balance outstanding.

b. Bank Indebtedness  

The City holds a $4,230,000 EFT limit.

13. Municipal Finance Authority 

Cash Deposits and Demand Notes - The City issues the majority of its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance

Authority.  As a condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the Municipal

Finance Authority as a debt reserve fund.  The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture

whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the Municipal Finance Authority.  These demand notes are

contingent in nature.

Proceeds on loan requests are 98.40% of the gross amount of the loan. 1% is deducted by the MFA for security against

loan default (this is held in trust by the MFA in its Debt Reserve Fund and will be refunded to clients, with interest, at

loan expiry). The remaining 0.60% is deducted as an issue expense to cover the costs of administering the Debt Reserve

Fund.

As at December 31, 2019 the Debt Reserve Fund demand note requirements were $1,830,379 (2018 - $1,847,557). In

addition, cash deposits totaling $859,924 (2018 - $844,411) were held by the MFA.

16

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 37 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

14. Budget 

The Financial Plan (Budget) Bylaw No. 2019-10 adopted by Council on April 2, 2019 was not prepared on a basis

consistent with that used to report actual results (Public Sector Accounting Standards).  The budget figures anticipated

use of reserves accumulated in previous years to reduce current year expenditures in excess of current year revenues to

Nil.  In addition, the budget expensed all tangible capital expenditures rather than including amortization expense.  As a

result, the budget figures presented in the statements of operations and change in net financial assets  represent the

Financial Plan adopted by Council with adjustments as follows:

2019

Financial Plan (Budget) Bylaw surplus for the year $ -

Add: 

Transfer to Funds/Reserves 21,973,920

Debt Principal Repayments 2,333,054

 Budgeted Capital Expenditures - General 6,960,397

 Budgeted Capital Expenditures - Electric 3,693,238

 Budgeted Capital Expenditures - Sewer 4,577,800

 Budgeted Capital Expenditures - Water 5,512,200

Less: 

Budgeted Transfers from Surplus 21,901,449

Budget Surplus per Statement of Operations $ 23,149,160

15. Transfers From Other Governments 

2019 2018

Gas tax community works fund $ 2,984,053 $ 1,507,824

Traffic fine revenue sharing 385,097 385,881

Okanagan Basin Water Board grants 174,654 211,504

Province of British Columbia - Carmi Reservoir - 511,705

BC Arts Council 20,900 18,000

Library 131,916 132,218

Miscellaneous 166,693 214,022

 $ 3,863,313 $ 2,981,154

17

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 38 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

16. Penticton Public Library 

The establishment of a municipal public library in the City of Penticton Bylaw 2639 was passed December 8, 1969.  The

Bylaw indicates that the City exercises significant influence over the Penticton Public Library and is required to fund its

operations as per the Library Act.  The Penticton Public Library assets as managed by the Library Board are recorded as

assets of the City.  The operations of the Penticton Public Library have been wholly consolidated by the City.

17. Taxation 

Budget 2019 2018

Municipal Taxation

Real Property $ 33,431,395 $ 33,368,337 $ 31,575,505

Special Assessments 171,000 147,128 170,067

Grants in Lieu 335,000 459,950 460,447

Total municipal taxation 33,937,395 33,975,415 32,206,019

Collections For other Governments

School 17,394,721 15,866,523 15,647,890

Regional District 1,639,331 2,078,370 1,940,995

Regional Hospital 2,662,296 2,625,433 2,603,331

BCAA 482,507 413,586 409,730

Total collections for other taxing authorities 22,178,855 20,983,912 20,601,946

Transfers to Other Governments (22,178,855) (20,988,919) (20,595,283)

Supplemental Taxation Recovered (Remitted) - 5,007 (6,663)

Net taxation for municipal purposes $ 33,937,395 $ 33,975,415 $ 32,206,019

18. Comparative Figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

18

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 39 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

19. Contractual Rights 

Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in an asset in

the future. The City's contractual rights arise because of contracts entered into for long-term land leases that grant rights

to the City, upon termination of the lease, to any Building(s) the Tenant has constructed on the land. The following

listing outlines the nature, amount, and timing for each of the City’s contractual rights to future assets:

The Penticton Golf & Country Club  

The LEASE Agreement between The City of Penticton and The Penticton Golf & Country Club dated July 1, 2007, will

generate an asset to the City upon expiry of the lease.  The LEASE Agreement grants the right of ownership of the Golf

Clubhouse Building to the City; the current market value for this building is $1,656,000. This is a 26 year, 4 month Lease,

due to expire in 2033. 

Art Gallery of the South Okanagan (Inc. 9986)  

The LEASE Agreement between The City of Penticton and the Art Gallery of the South Okanagan (Inc, 9986) dated

October 1, 1999, will generate an asset to the City upon expiry of the lease.    The LEASE Agreement grants the right of

ownership of the Art Gallery Building to the City; the current market value for this building is $935,000. This is a 20 year

Lease, that expired in 2019 and is currently operating on a month to month basis. 

Penticton Seniors’ Drop-in Centre Society  

The LEASE Agreement between The City of Penticton and the Penticton Seniors’ Drop-in Centre Society dated May 31,

2019, will generate an asset to the City upon expiry of the lease.  The LEASE Agreement grants the right of ownership of

the Drop-In Centre Building to the City; the current market value for this building is $1,708,000. This is a 20 year Lease,

due to expire in 2039. 

Gateway Casinos & Entertainment Limited  

The LEASE Agreement between The City of Penticton and Gateway Casinos & Entertainment Limited dated May 4, 2016,

will generate an asset to the City upon expiry of the lease.    The LEASE Agreement grants the right of ownership of the

Casino Building to the City; the current market value for this building is $12,595,000. This is a 20 year Lease, due to

expire in 2036 with two 10-year extension options. 

20. Segmented Information 

The City is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of services to its citizens such as

transit, police, fire, water and electricity.  Distinguishable functional segments have been separately disclosed in the

segmented information.  The nature of the segments and the activities they encompass are as follows:

General Government Services  

General Government operations are primarily funded by property taxation.  This segment includes all of the revenues

and expenses that relate to the operations of the City itself and cannot be directly attributed to one of the other specific

segments including administration, financial services, human resources, information technology, and revenue and

collections.

19

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 40 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

20. Segmented Information continued 

Protective Services  

Protection is comprised of police services, fire protection dog control and building services.  The police services work to

ensure the safety and protection of the citizens and their property.  The fire department is responsible to provide fire

suppression service, fire prevention programs, training and education.

Transportation Services  

Transportation is responsible for the delivery of municipal public works services related to the City's public transit

services, roads and maintenance, bridges, drainage systems,  bylaw services, public works, street lighting and traffic

control.

Environmental Health Services  

Environmental services consists of providing waste disposal to citizens.

Public Health and Safety  

Health services are comprised of public health services; this segment includes the operation of the City's Cemeteries.

Environmental Development Services  

This segment includes city planning, economic development and ensures all property development and land use is in

line with City Bylaw's and policies and is in the best interest of the community.

Recreation and Culture  

This segment provides services meant to improve health and development of the City's citizens.  Recreational programs

and cultural programs like swimming and skating lessons are provided at the arenas, the aquatic centre and the

community centre.  Also, the City provides library services to assist with its citizens' informational needs and a museum

that houses collections and artifacts.  The segment also includes parks, land administration and the City's net

contribution to the operations of the South Okanagan Events Centre.

Electrical Utility  

The electrical supply system is responsible for distribution of electricity to the City's citizens and businesses.  This

segment includes all of the operating activities related to the supply of the City's electricity.

Sewer Utility  

The City's sanitary sewer system collects, conveys and treats and disposes of domestic and industrial wastewater.  This

segment includes all of the operating activities related to the collection and treatment of wastewater (sewage)

throughout the City.

20

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 41 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

20. Segmented Information continued 

Water Utility   

The water utility is responsible for planning, designing, building and operating and maintaining the City's water system

and includes all of the operating activities related to the treatment and distribution of water throughout the City.

21. Cemetery Perpetual Trust Fund 

The Cemetery Trust fund is established in accordance with the Cremation, Interment, and Funeral Services Act, to

upkeep the cemetery grounds/facilities upon closure of the cemetery. As per legislation, current interest income earned

on the Reserve balance may be used to offset cemetery operating and capital expenditures.  Annual cemetery operating

and capital expenditures are approved by Council through the annual budgeting process.  The trust fund assets and

liabilities are not included in the consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2019, the balance of funds held in

trust was $1,056,150 (2018 - $1,017,095).  

22. COVID-19 

Subsequent to year end, the impact of COVID-19 in Canada and on the global economy increased significantly.   As the

impacts of COVID-19 continue, there could be further impact on the City, its citizens, employees, suppliers and other

third party business associates that could impact the timing and amounts realized on the City’s assets and future ability

to deliver services and projects.  At this time, the full potential impact of COVID-19 on the City is not known. Although

the disruption from the virus is expected to be temporary, given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the

duration of disruption and the related financial impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.  The City’s ability to

continue delivering non-essential services and employ related staff, will depend on the legislative mandates from the

various levels of government.  The City will continue to focus on collecting receivables, managing expenditures, and

leveraging existing reserves and available credit facilities to ensure it is able to continue providing essential services to

its citizens. 

21

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 42 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

SCHEDULE OF SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

DECEMBER 31, 2019 

General

Government

Services

Protective

Services

Transportation

Services

Environmental

Health

Services

Public

Health and

Safety

Environmental

Development

Services

Recreation

and Culture

Electrical

Utility

Sewer

Utility

Water

Utility 

2019

Total

REVENUE 

Taxation $ 33,975,415 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 33,975,415

Sales of Services 2,582,643 1,234,345 1,754,814 2,593,063 423,325 135,027 2,597,542 43,097,201 6,464,890 9,213,484 70,096,334

Government Grants

and Transfers 3,438,030 36,548 - - - 55,553 158,528 - 174,654 - 3,863,313

Other Revenue 9,195,223 157,563 37,525 - - - 1,287,568 12,373 - - 10,690,252

Other Contributions 199,671 - 483,757 - - - - 1,198,357 69,907 487,024 2,438,716

Gain (loss) on Disposal 14,264 - 48,150 - - - - - - - 62,414

Contributed Asset 12,000 - - - - - - - - - 12,000

 49,417,246 1,428,456 2,324,246 2,593,063 423,325 190,580 4,043,638 44,307,931 6,709,451 9,700,508 121,138,444

EXPENDITURE 

Salaries and Benefits 5,753,230 7,997,780 2,093,755 154,102 39,752 1,802,940 6,201,658 2,087,480 1,881,362 1,825,826 29,837,885

Goods and Services 4,291,797 970,019 3,579,516 1,739,964 201,203 951,124 4,597,872 31,160,431 1,728,056 1,690,377 50,910,359

Interest 42,980 78,625 68,114 - - - 763,474 - 514,500 338,526 1,806,219

Amortization 8,028,713 - 1,997,994 - - - - 2,175,669 1,108,100 908,014 14,218,490

Other Expenses 1,087,452 5,546 4,546 - - 703,551 28,457 53,500 6,203 22,401 1,911,656

Vehicle & Equipment

Maintenance 431,238 96,301 2,124,467 3,924 3,298 9,291 449,229 203,759 347,701 175,698 3,844,906

Policing Agreement - 7,526,863 - - - - - - - - 7,526,863

 19,635,410 16,675,134 9,868,392 1,897,990 244,253 3,466,906 12,040,690 35,680,839 5,585,922 4,960,842 110,056,378

Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues Over

Expenditures $ 29,781,836 $(15,246,678) $ (7,544,146) $ 695,073 $ 179,072 $ (3,276,326) $ (7,997,052) $ 8,627,092 $ 1,123,529 $ 4,739,666 $ 11,082,066

22DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 43 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

SCHEDULE OF SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

General

Government

Services

Protective

Services

Transportation

Services

Environmental

Health

Services

Public

Health and

Safety

Environmental

Development

Services

Recreation

and Culture

Electrical

Supply

Sewer

System

Utility

Water

Utility

Services

2018

Total

REVENUE 

Taxation $ 32,206,019 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 32,206,019

Sales of Services 2,677,060 1,141,643 2,331,909 2,454,942 312,235 108,071 2,433,900 43,690,448 5,618,853 8,862,818 69,631,879

Government Grants

and Transfers 1,923,706 111,701 - - - 52,320 170,218 - 211,504 511,705 2,981,154

Other Revenue 7,876,949 149,897 30,000 - - - 1,264,420 12,235 - 5,945 9,339,446

Other Contributions 218,821 - 1,396,927 - - - - 1,111,216 81,378 639,935 3,448,277

Gain (loss) on Disposal (106,012) - (537,499) - - - 777,354 - - - 133,843

Contributed Asset 2,021,239 - - - - - - - - - 2,021,239

 46,817,782 1,403,241 3,221,337 2,454,942 312,235 160,391 4,645,892 44,813,899 5,911,735 10,020,403 119,761,857

EXPENDITURE 

Salaries and Benefits 5,480,065 7,756,242 2,044,532 132,471 42,422 1,807,943 5,637,748 1,939,788 1,510,690 1,545,879 27,897,780

Goods and Services 3,886,886 981,438 4,799,740 1,598,205 186,953 1,196,674 4,611,349 31,430,798 1,565,363 1,515,993 51,773,399

Interest (27,144) 84,000 131,732 - - - 1,384,852 - 709,613 434,343 2,717,396

Amortization 7,833,058 - 1,904,865 - - - - 2,119,112 1,098,271 890,867 13,846,173

Other Expenses 1,534,785 26,927 10,868 - - 640,005 24,889 36,579 2,252 9,267 2,285,572

Vehicle & Equipment

Maintenance 325,615 87,641 1,931,876 4,383 2,566 8,216 468,424 1,689,587 322,962 160,880 5,002,150

Policing Agreement - 7,031,047 - - - - - - - - 7,031,047

 19,033,265 15,967,295 10,823,613 1,735,059 231,941 3,652,838 12,127,262 37,215,864 5,209,151 4,557,229 110,553,517

Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues Over

Expenditures $ 27,784,517 $(14,564,054) $ (7,602,276) $ 719,883 $ 80,294 $ (3,492,447) $ (7,481,370) $ 7,598,035 $ 702,584 $ 5,463,174 $ 9,208,340

23DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 44 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

GENERAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019

Budget 2019 2018

Revenue 

Taxation $ 33,937,395 $ 33,975,415 $ 32,206,019

Sales of Services 15,047,470 16,010,962 16,137,073

Government Grants and Transfers 2,137,257 3,688,659 2,257,945

Transfer From Other Funds/Reserves 1,453,469 5,917,384 6,090,564

Other Revenue 7,671,912 10,677,879 9,321,265

Other Contributions 205,768 683,425 1,615,748

Sale of Assets 30,000 62,414 133,843

Collections For other Governments 22,178,855 20,983,911 20,601,945

 82,662,126 92,000,049 88,364,402

Expenditure 

Salaries and Benefits 23,306,946 24,660,270 23,501,703

Goods and Services 15,760,459 17,337,285 18,270,358

Interest 961,606 953,193 1,573,440

Principal Payments 1,365,859 1,365,151 1,985,239

Other Expenses 2,005,033 1,829,550 2,237,473

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 1,982,221 3,117,748 2,828,721

Policing Agreement 7,737,010 7,526,863 7,031,047

Transfer to Other Funds/Reserves 7,364,137 12,929,031 9,809,192

Transfers to Other Governments 22,178,855 20,988,919 20,595,283

 82,662,126 90,708,010 87,832,456

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES - 1,292,039 531,946

 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - 1,292,039 531,946

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,557,954 6,557,954 6,026,008

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 6,557,954 $ 7,849,993 $ 6,557,954

24

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 45 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

RESERVE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019 2018

Balance, Beginning of Year $ 14,595,289 $ 14,539,200

 

Add 

Transfers from: 

Revenue Funds 6,088,229 5,165,260

Interest Earned 324,063 247,129

Non-Statutory Reserves 6,800,000 -

Deduct 

Transfers to: 

Capital Funds 3,520,493 5,356,300

Revenue Funds 338,222 -

 $ 23,948,866 $ 14,595,289

 

 

STATUTORY RESERVE FUND BALANCES 

Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund 6,112,126 4,337,362

Tax Sale Lands Reserve Fund 7,820 7,687

Capital Reserve Fund 2,272,450 2,665,542

Land Acquisition Reserve 83,326 81,909

Local Improvement 1,151,936 1,062,349

Off-Site Parking Reserve Fund 126,732 124,577

Community Works Reserve Fund 2,879,469 1,066,911

Public Amenity Reserve 118,048 75,267

Affordable Housing Reserve 216,433 171,979

Alternative Transportation Reserve 153,442 53,666

Asset Sustainability 4,244,407 2,443,294

Water Capital Reserve Fund 935,879 919,964

Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 561,888 552,333

Electric Capital Reserve Fund 5,084,910 1,032,449

 23,948,866 14,595,289

Balance, End of Year $ 23,948,866 $ 14,595,289

25

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 46 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

RESERVE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

Balance,

Beginning of

Year

Transfer from

General

Revenue Fund Interest Earned

Transfer to/from

General

Revenue/Capital

Fund

Transfer to

Sewer Capital

Fund

Inter-reserve

Transfers

2019

Total

Reserve 

Equipment Replacement $ 4,337,362 $ 1,462,380 $ 85,203 $ (1,772,819) $ - $ 2,000,000 $ 6,112,126

Tax Sale Lands 7,687 - 133 - - - 7,820

Capital 2,665,542 65,981 41,781 (500,854) - - 2,272,450

Land Acquisition 81,909 - 1,417 - - - 83,326

Local Improvement 1,062,349 112,897 18,171 (41,481) - - 1,151,936

Off-Street Parking 124,577 - 2,155 - - - 126,732

Community Works 1,066,911 2,984,053 33,844 (1,205,339) - - 2,879,469

Public Amenity 75,267 41,123 1,658 - - - 118,048

Affordable Housing 171,979 41,123 3,331 - - - 216,433

Alternative Transportation 53,666 98,000 1,776 - - - 153,442

Asset Sustainability 2,443,294 1,282,672 56,663 (338,222) - 800,000 4,244,407

Water Capital 919,964 - 15,915 - - - 935,879

Sewer Capital 552,333 - 9,555 - - - 561,888

Electric Capital 1,032,449 - 52,461 - - 4,000,000 5,084,910

 $ 14,595,289 $ 6,088,229 $ 324,063 $ (3,858,715) $ - $ 6,800,000 $ 23,948,866

26DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 47 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON

RESERVES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

Balance,

Beginning of

Year Transfers    In

Transfers

Out Interest

Inter-reserve

Transfers

2019

Total

Non-Statutory

Asset Emergency $ 765,443 $ 1,015,082 $ (285,582) $ - $ 1,200,000 $ 2,694,943

Building Permit Stabilization 45,011 - - - (45,011) -

Carbon Tax Credit Reserve 152,421 - - - (152,421) -

Cemetery Land 133,000 - - - - 133,000

Climate Action 231,640 48,000 - - 152,421 432,061

Election - 30,000 - - - 30,000

Electric Surplus 19,056,284 3,329,605 - - (4,000,000) 18,385,889

Financial Stabilization 211,554 323,010 - - 570,012 1,104,576

Gaming 4,767,594 1,674,525 (211,352) - (3,600,000) 2,630,767

General Surplus 6,557,956 1,292,039 - - - 7,849,995

Infrastructure 400,000 - - - (400,000) -

Investment Income 1,369,942 - - - - 1,369,942

Liability Insurance 250,001 - - - (250,001) -

Marinas 608,098 49,963 (64,230) - - 593,831

Multi-Material BC 292,428 499,807 (246,000) - - 546,235

Northgate 52,000 - (52,000) - - -

Parking & Revitalization 51,765 - - - - 51,765

Public Art 94,771 - (18,000) - - 76,771

Rate Stabilization 200,000 - - - (200,000) -

RCMP 459,999 100,000 (16,705) - - 543,294

Sewer Equipment Replacement 180,268 - - - - 180,268

Sewer Surplus 3,621,719 - (2,133,152) - - 1,488,567

Snow Clearing Stabilization 75,000 - - - (75,000) -

Special Events Site 21,166 - (21,166) - - -

Water Surplus 6,802,114 - (374,129) - - 6,427,985

West Bench Capital 1,185,185 - - - - 1,185,185

West Bench Water 1,566,720 - (78,336) - - 1,488,384

Wine/Info 13,150 - (13,150) - - -

49,165,229 8,362,031 (3,513,802) - (6,800,000) 47,213,458

Statutory 14,595,289 6,088,229 (3,858,715) 324,063 6,800,000 23,948,866

DCC 15,657,283 2,082,890 (201,907) 287,495 - 17,825,761

$ 79,417,801 $ 16,533,150 $ (7,574,424) $ 611,558 $ - $ 88,988,085

27

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 48 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

SEWER REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019

Budget 2019 2018

Revenue 

Sales of Services $ 6,914,622 $ 6,464,890 $ 5,618,853

Government Grants and Transfers 208,058 174,654 211,504

Transfer From Other Funds/Reserves 1,000,000 1,238,157 1,252,791

 8,122,680 7,877,701 7,083,148

Expenditure 

Salaries and Benefits 1,653,534 1,881,362 1,510,690

Goods and Services 2,000,297 2,469,665 2,214,963

Interest 546,515 514,500 709,613

Principal Payments 545,072 545,072 575,057

Other Expenses - 6,203 2,252

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 479,125 347,701 322,962

Transfer to Other Funds/Reserves 2,898,137 4,246,350 3,337,569

 8,122,680 10,010,853 8,673,106

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES - (2,133,152) (1,589,958)

 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - (2,133,152) (1,589,958)

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,621,719 3,621,719 5,211,677

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 3,621,719 $ 1,488,567 $ 3,621,719

28

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 49 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

WATER REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019

Budget 2019 2018

Revenue 

Sales of Services $ 8,822,919 $ 9,213,484 $ 8,862,818

Government Grants and Transfers - - 511,705

Transfer From Other Funds/Reserves 78,336 1,313,493 3,080,159

Other Revenue - - 5,945

 8,901,255 10,526,977 12,460,627

Expenditure 

Salaries and Benefits 1,662,381 1,825,826 1,545,878

Goods and Services 1,960,010 2,491,923 2,231,481

Interest 358,795 338,526 434,343

Principal Payments 422,123 422,123 422,123

Other Expenses 23,224 22,401 9,267

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 263,675 175,698 160,880

Transfer to Other Funds/Reserves 4,211,047 5,624,609 5,763,988

 8,901,255 10,901,106 10,567,960

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES - (374,129) 1,892,667

 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - (374,129) 1,892,667

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,802,117 6,802,117 4,909,450

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 6,802,117 $ 6,427,988 $ 6,802,117

29

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 50 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

ELECTRIC REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019

Budget 2019 2018

Revenue 

Sales of Services $ 42,083,420 $ 43,097,201 $ 43,690,448

Other Revenue 9,270 12,373 12,235

Transfer From Other Funds/Reserves - 350,430 482,324

 42,092,690 43,460,004 44,185,007

Expenditure 

Salaries and Benefits 1,608,704 2,087,480 1,939,788

Goods and Services 33,606,451 32,684,642 33,133,633

Other Expenses 108,156 53,500 36,579

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 186,096 203,759 1,689,587

Transfer to Other Funds/Reserves 6,583,283 9,101,018 5,151,755

 42,092,690 44,130,399 41,951,342

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES - (670,395) 2,233,665

 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - (670,395) 2,233,665

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 19,056,284 19,056,284 16,822,619

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 19,056,284 $ 18,385,889 $ 19,056,284

30

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 51 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

STORM WATER

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019

Budget 2019 2018

REVENUE

Sales of Services $ 367,000 $ 362,063 $ 172,729

Government Grants and Transfers - - 10,000

367,000 362,063 182,729

EXPENDITURE

Salaries and Benefits 248,300 202,504 131,920

Goods and Services 122,000 148,623 136,874

Other Expenses - - 155

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 55,000 17,322 32,261

425,300 368,449 301,210

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (58,300) $ (6,386) $ (118,481)

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

31

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 52 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

DEBT ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING

DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019 Payments

LIA B Law S/1 B Law Issue

Issue

Date Purpose

Issue

Amount

Outstanding

Amount

Term

(Years) Maturity

Rate

(%) Interest Principal

General Fund 

9925 20005 72 12-Apr-00 RCMP Building $ 2,500,000 $ 186,960 20 2020 1.670 $ 47,125 $ 82,873

9925 20046 73 07-Nov-00 RCMP Building 1,500,000 112,176 20 2020 2.100 31,500 49,725

2003-15 2268 81 22-Apr-04 Storm Sewer 337,500 117,250 20 2024 2.625 8,859 10,207

2004-16 859-2004 85 25-Oct-04 Parks-Land Acquisition 1,680,000 583,646 20 2024 2.000 33,600 50,807

2004-18 859/2004 85 25-Oct-04 Road Works-S. Main St. 195,000 67,745 20 2024 2.000 3,900 5,897

2004-19 859/2004 85 25-Oct-04 Road Design-Main St. 150,000 52,111 20 2024 2.000 3,000 4,536

2004-20 859/2004 85 25-Oct-04 Integrated Waterfront 550,000 191,075 20 2024 2.000 11,000 16,633

2004-21 859/2004 85 25-Oct-04 Youth Park 50,000 17,370 20 2024 2.000 1,000 1,512

2004-11 1108/2004 93 06-Apr-05 Wine Information Centre 800,000 283,527 20 2025 5.100 15,562 43,228

2004-20 1108-2004 93 06-Apr-05 Integrated Waterfront 520,000 184,292 20 2025 5.100 10,115 28,098

2004-21 614/2005 95 13-Oct-05 Youth Park 150,000 57,358 20 2025 1.800 2,700 5,514

2005-18 615/2005 95 13-Oct-05 Integrated Waterfront 825,000 315,469 20 2025 1.800 14,850 30,328

2006-15 17/17/2006 99 07-Nov-06 Road Works-Fairview/Ind 1,595,000 704,419 20 2026 1.750 27,913 53,563

2006-17 17/17/2006 99 07-Nov-06 Sportsfields 3,200,000 1,413,253 20 2026 1.750 56,000 107,462

2006-33 273/2007 102 02-Nov-07 Integrated Waterfront '06 350,000 173,393 20 2027 2.250 7,875 11,754

2006-76 024/2008 103 23-Apr-08 Wellness Centre 3,000,000 1,641,314 20 2028 2.650 79,500 100,745

2007-41 333/2008 104 20-Nov-08 Cemetery-Columbarium 2,500,000 1,367,762 20 2028 2.900 72,500 83,954

2007-52 333/2008 104 20-Nov-08 Indoor Soccer Facility 1,000,000 547,105 20 2028 2.900 29,000 33,582

2007-57 333/2008 104 20-Nov-08 Integrated Waterfront 530,000 289,965 20 2028 2.900 15,370 17,798

2007-60 157-2009 105 21-Apr-09 PIDA 231,344 - 10 2019 4.900 5,668 19,269

2007-52 638/2009 106 13-Oct-09 Indoor Soccer Facility 415,000 247,678 20 2029 4.130 17,140 13,936

2007-52 15/30/2010 110 08-Apr-10 Indoor Soccer Ph2 586,000 377,742 20 2030 4.500 26,370 19,679

2009-14 15/30/2010 110 08-Apr-10 Pool Upgrades 7,400,000 4,770,123 20 2030 4.500 333,000 248,505

2007-52 B25/2011 116 04-Apr-11 Indoor Soccer Facility 135,000 93,227 20 2031 4.200 5,670 4,534

2009-43 B25/2011 116 04-Apr-11 Road Wrks-Smythe Dr 447,000 308,685 20 2031 4.200 18,774 15,011

26/2018 Downtown 300 Block Main Street 1,530,000 1,224,000 5 - 32,222 306,000

32DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 53 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

DEBT ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING

DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019 Payments

LIA B Law S/1 B Law Issue

Issue

Date Purpose

Issue

Amount

Outstanding

Amount

Term

(Years) Maturity

Rate

(%) Interest Principal

 32,176,844 15,327,645 910,213 1,365,150

 

Water Fund

2006-07 17/07/2006 99 07-Nov-06 Naramata Rd. Upgrade 4,670,000 2,062,467 20 2026 1.750 81,725 156,827

2007-83 333/2008 104 20-Nov-08 Water Filtration Plant 4,000,000 2,188,419 20 2028 2.900 116,000 134,327

2007-83 638/2009 106 13-Oct-09 Water Filtration Plant 3,900,000 2,327,574 20 2029 4.130 161,070 130,969

 12,570,000 6,578,460 358,795 422,123

Sewer Fund 

2006-61 273/2007 102 02-Nov-07 Septage Handling Facility 1,050,000 520,177 20 2027 2.250 23,625 35,261

2008-10 333-2008 104 02-Nov-07 Sewer System Upgrade 8,000,000 4,376,838 20 2028 2.900 232,000 268,654

2007-60 157/2009 105 21-Apr-09 PIDA 73,056 - 10 2019 4.900 1,790 6,085

2008-10 638-2009 106 13-Oct-09 Sewer Plant Expansion 7,000,000 4,177,697 20 2029 4.130 289,100 235,072

 16,123,056 9,074,712 546,515 545,072

 $ 60,869,900 $ 30,980,817 $ 1,815,523 $ 2,332,345

33DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020 - 54 -



THE CITY OF PENTICTON 

CEMETERY PERPETUAL TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

(UNAUDITED)

2019 2018

ASSETS 

Bank Term Deposits $ 1,063,696 $ 1,039,781

Less: 

Due To General Revenue Fund 7,546 22,686

 $ 1,056,150 $ 1,017,095

 

SURPLUS 

Balance, Beginning of Year $ 1,017,095 $ 986,694

Add: 

Care Fund Contributions 39,037 30,324

Interest Earned 23,918 23,377

 62,955 53,701

Deduct: 

Cemetery Maintenance 23,900 23,300

Balance, End of Year $ 1,056,150 $ 1,017,095

34

DRAFT FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N - C
OUNCIL M

AY 19, 2
020

- 55 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 19, 2020        File No:    1970-04 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Amber Coates, Revenue Supervisor 
 
Subject: Permissive Tax Exemption Policy Amendment   

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve the amended “Permissive Tax Exemption Policy”, a policy that provides direction on 
the requirements and evaluation of applications made pursuant to Section 224 of the Community Charter. 

 

Strategic priority objective 

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership 
and the provision of effective and community focused services. 

 

Background 

Local governments have the authority to exempt eligible properties from property taxation for a specified 
period of time. Such exemptions must be provided by bylaw. Permissive exemptions are different to 
statutory exemptions, which are automatic and not at the discretion of a local government. 

The authority to grant permissive exemptions allows municipalities to promote or achieve goals deemed to 
be of high importance to the local community.  These often include societies and non-profits providing 
support services, programs, and housing to at-risk members of the community, as well as those that provide 
increased well-being to members of the community at large. 

Local governments are limited by Section 224 of the Community Charter as to which types or applicants and 
services may be considered for Permissive Tax Exemption. Exemptions provided for in Section 224 are at the 
discretion of Council and there is no obligation to give the exemption. 

During the 2020 Permissive Tax Exemption bylaw readings in September 2019 and later adoption October 
18, 2019, staff was requested to review and come forward with potential changes to section 3.14 of the 
policy as the policy-stated cap of 1.68% was exceeded. 

- 56 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

Analysis 

Staff revisited the summary table of practices followed by other municipalities from the large update 
performed on the policy in 2019. 

Municipality Published Cap Categories Last Updated 

City of Vernon 
None 

3 year phase-in 
Yes 

Based on Resident Benefit 
2018 

City of Kelowna None None 2017 

District of West Kelowna None 
Yes 

Based on Resident Benefit 
2015 

District of Summerland None None 2014 
Town of Oliver None None 2011 

City of Kamloops Amount Set each Cycle 
Yes 

Based on Type 
2016 

City of Victoria 
1.60% of taxes + 

Category % 
Yes 

Based on Type 
2013 

City of Abbotsford Amount Set at Budget 
Yes 

Based on Resident Benefit 
2016 

City of Courtenay 
2.00% of taxes + 

Category % 
Yes 

Based on Resident Benefit 
2017 

Township of Langley None 
Yes 

Based on Type 
2006 

City of Penticton 
(current) 

1.68% of taxes 
Yes 

Based on Type 
2019 

 

The two most common mechanisms in use for limiting taxes foregone are a percentage cap per category, or 
a percentage cap based on the general municipal tax amounts.  Suggested options for either of those two 
mechanisms are provided in the alternate recommendations 1 and 2 respectively. 

In consideration of the discussion at the September and October Council meetings last year that limiting the 
assistance to organizations that benefit from permissive tax exemptions and in turn benefit the community 
is not desirable in a wholesale fashion. Instead, staff is recommending that Council be provided with an 
overview of new applicants, or applications where organizations have made significant changes to their 
property or services. This approach will help to ensure the services align with the community priorities and 
needs prior to providing the applicant with a permissive tax exemption through the annual bylaw adoption. 
Returning applicants with no significant changes and that continue to qualify under the Community Charter 
would automatically be included at the full 100%. 

In this way, Council and returning applicants with no significant changes will be assured of continuation of 
services provided, but Council will have the opportunity to review and discuss significant changes or new 
applications to ensure they are suited to the community and should be provided the benefit of a permissive 
tax exemption prior to the property being adopted into the annual bylaw. 

 

- 57 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Alternate recommendations 

1. THAT Council direct staff to remove the property taxes foregone percentage in section 3.14 and instead 
incorporate a maximum percentage per Evaluation Category: 

• Affordable Rental Housing: 100% 
• Special Needs and Supportive Housing: 100% 
• Health, Safety and Social Service properties: 100% 
• Arts, Cultural and Heritage facilities: 80% 
• Parks, Recreation and Sports facilities: 80% 
• Places of Worship, Private School and Hospitals ancillary properties: 100% 

 
2. THAT Council direct staff to amend the cap for the property taxes foregone percentage in section 3.14 of the 

policy at 2.00% as opposed to the current 1.68%. 
 

3. THAT Council direct staff to continue to use the current Permissive Tax Exemption policy. 

 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Amended Permissive Tax Exemption Policy (Proposed) 

Attachment B – Permissive Tax Exemption Policy 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amber Coates 
Revenue Supervisor 

 

Concurrence  

Chief Financial 
Officer  

 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

JWB 
 

DvD 
 

 

- 58 -



 

 
    Council Policy 

 

Council Policy – Revenue & Collections Permissive Tax Exemption  Page 1 of 4 

 

 

Approval date: May 19, 2020      Resolution No.:    XXX/2020 

Subject:  Permissive Tax Exemption Policy 
 

1.0 Goal 

The goal is to provide clarity, consistency and certainty to the municipality, the public and the prospective 
applicants in the requirements and evaluations of applications for exemption from property taxes pursuant to 
Section 224 of the Community Charter. 

2.0 Background and Scope 

Section 224 of the Community Charter provides for permissive tax exemptions for properties used by a variety 
of non-profit organizations or properties that Council considers are used for a purpose directly related to the 
purposes of the organization. It also provides for permissive exemptions for some properties which are 
additional to statutory exemptions under Section 220, such as church halls or ancillary land surrounding places 
for public worship or privately run schools. 

Exemptions provided for in Section 224 are established by Council bylaw at the absolute discretion of Council. 
There is no obligation to give the exemption or to continue it in future years. 

Exemptions cannot be granted if the organization does not qualify under the Community Charter. 

The intent of this policy and associated evaluation categories and guidelines is to identify the services and 
organizations which are the most complementary extensions of municipal services, and for which the burden 
resulting from the exemption is a justifiable expense to the taxpayers of Penticton. Support will be directed 
towards services the City would consider providing given adequate resources. 

3.0 Policy 

3.1 Applications for permissive tax exemption will only be accepted during the annual advertised 
application period and using the prescribed application method and form in order to ensure 
reasonable consideration and opportunity for all applicants. 

 
3.2 The following information will be considered when determining whether to grant a permissive tax 

exemption: 
a) The principal use of the property, including the services offered 
b) The need for the services 
c) The availability of the services 

- 59 -



Council Policy – Revenue & Collections Permissive Tax Exemption  Page 2 of 4 

d) Other funding sources 
e) The use of volunteers to deliver services 

 
3.3 A permissive tax exemption may be granted when: 

a) The organization is able to demonstrate a need for its services 
b) The organization has made an effort to obtain other funding sources for provision of services 
c) The organization does make use of volunteers to provide services 

3.4 Exemptions are based on the principal use of the property, not on the charitable service of the 
organization as a whole. 

3.5 Exemptions can only be granted to the portion of a property that meets all the requirements of 
this policy. The exemption may apply to the whole or part of the taxable assessed value of land, 
improvements, or both. 

3.6 Only that part of the property used for non-profit activities will be considered for exemption. 
Commercial activities will be excluded. For clarity, society administration is considered part of the 
non-profit organization’s program delivery. 

3.7 Applicants must show evidence of a clear mandate and competent administration. 

3.8 Applicants must not be in arrears with the City in regard to any accounts for taxes, fees or charges. 

3.9 The use of the property must be consistent with and in compliance with all applicable municipal 
policies, bylaws and legislation. 

3.10 The organization must justify the need for the services and may be required to make a 
presentation to Council. 

3.11 The organization must be seen to be working towards self-sufficiency by seeking funding from 
other sources. 

3.12 The organization may be required to show evidence of ongoing, active volunteer involvement. 

3.13 Services and activities should be equally available to all residents of the City, and benefit primarily 
residents of the City. 

3.14 Each year, new property applications and applications with significant changes will be 
highlighted at the time of the annual bylaw presentation in order to demonstrate the additional 
benefits of services being provided for in the community. Council will have the opportunity to 
deny the addition of any new or changed properties whose services do not align with the current 
community priorities or needs.  

 

 

- 60 -



Council Policy – Revenue & Collections Permissive Tax Exemption  Page 3 of 4 

 

4.0 Evaluation Categories 

All applications must meet the description of at least one of the categories below, and self-declare their primary 
category as part of the application: 

4.1 Affordable Rental Housing: housing with rents equal to, or lower than, average rates in the 
private market.  

4.2 Special Needs and Supportive Housing: short term emergency or crisis protection for members 
of the community, supportive housing for people with special needs, halfway houses, transitional 
homes and group homes with supportive staff and programs.  

4.3 Health, Safety and Social Service properties: support services and programs to assist 
maximizing the health, safety, and quality of life of members of the community.  

4.4 Arts, Cultural and Heritage facilities: preparation and delivery of artistic, cultural or historical 
events, exhibits, or education to the public. 

4.5 Parks, Recreation and Sports facilities: provide space and equipment for the physical and 
mental enjoyment of the participants.  

4.6 Places of Worship, Private Schools and Hospitals ancillary properties: must be recognized by 
BC Assessment as operating in one of these capacities as well as be able to provide supporting 
documentation to that effect.  

5.0 Application and Exemption Cycle 

5.1 Applications: The annual application period will be during the Spring months of each year in 
order to apply to the following tax year.  Each year in advance of the application period the dates 
will be advertised in the local newspaper, as well as notice made to prior year applicants if 
possible. 

a) Long Form Application: form to be used for first time applications on a property, or if a 
property has had significant changes in use, applicant, or physical changes to the site since 
the prior year application. 

b) Short Form Application: form to be used for prior year exempted properties with no 
significant changes in use, applicant, or physical changes to the site. 

5.2 Evaluations and Bylaw Preparation: The annual evaluation period will be during the Summer 
months of each year for the following tax year. During the evaluation time period applicants may 
be contacted for additional information as needed or to appear before Council to make a 
presentation. 

5.3 Bylaw Review and Adoption: The Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw, or amendments to the 
Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw, must be adopted and submitted to BC Assessment prior to the 
end of October in order to apply for the following tax year in order for the exemptions to take 

- 61 -



Council Policy – Revenue & Collections Permissive Tax Exemption  Page 4 of 4 

effect. Proposed bylaw or bylaw amendment and the dates Council will deliberate will be 
advertised in accordance to the Community Charter Section 227. 

Previous revisions 

Approval Date:  April 2, 2013 
Council Resolution: 200/2013 

Approval Date:  April 2, 2019 
Council Resolution: 190/2019 

 

Certified correct: 

 

  

Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 62 -



- 63 -



- 64 -



- 65 -



- 66 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 19, 2020         File No:    6750-20 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Andrew Kemp, Economic Development Specialist  
 
Subject: Economic Recovery Task Force Recommendations   

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council support the following initiatives recommended by the Economic Recovery Task Force to assist 
the community in the recovery from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic:  

- Waive fees for sidewalk/storefront use permits and relax design standards for 2020; 
- Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP;  
- Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign;  
- Support recovery efforts through the “Love Local Penticton” campaign, which has started;   

AND THAT Council direct staff to begin implementation of the initiatives. 

Strategic priority objective 

Vision: A vibrant, innovative, healthy waterfront city focused on sustainability, community and economic 
opportunity.  

Background 

The COVID-19 pandemic is having a profound impact on our community both economically and 
psychologically. In response to the pandemic, the Economic Development Department has convened an 
Economic Recovery Task Force with key local businesses and community leaders to advise the City on 
potential policy changes and financial assistance ideas to provide relief to the community and assist in 
recovery from the pandemic. The Task Force have been meeting on a regular basis and have made the 
following recommendations: 

1. Waive fees for sidewalk / street use permits for 2020  
2. Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP    
3. Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign  
4. Support recovery efforts through a “Love Local Penticton” campaign   

 

- 67 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 3 

Analysis and Financial Implications  

Staff are supportive of all 4 recommendations made by the task force and can provide the following analysis 
/ comment: 

1. Waive fees for sidewalk/storefront use permits and relax design standards for 2020 
 
As businesses, specifically food and beverage and retail, begin to re-open and pivot their operational plans, 
there will be increased demand to utilize City sidewalks for patios and retail space. It is likely that restaurants 
will only be able to open at half capacity, making it difficult to survive financially. Utilizing outdoor space, 
where transmission of virus is much less of a concern, businesses may be able to increase the number of 
seats. In addition, patios and sidewalk uses add vibrancy to the streetscape.  
 
Removing the permit costs and relaxing some of the design standards for storefront patios and sidewalk 
retail display areas will encourage more businesses to take advantage of the areas in front of their 
storefronts. Staff have also continued to improve efficiencies to help support the retail and food services 
industry with a fast, flexible, and nimble permitting and business services to help them get back up and 
running. Should council support this approach, staff will bring a report to Council that will proposed 
amended policies and bylaws that deal with patios and allow for more seating and ensure social distancing 
is met.  
 
Financial Impact: Approximately $4,000  

 
2. Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP    

Task Force members continue to highlight the pervasive property crime issues aimed at local businesses 
and the frustrations with the lack of progress on detaining caught perpetrators. There is the fear that as the 
long term financial impacts of COVID are realized that these activities will worsen. The Task Force was 
extremely sympathetic to Superintendent Hunter’s presentation to Council and want to ensure the Council 
knows that continued Bylaw Enforcement and RCMP resources are needed.  

While this recommendation does not have an easy solution, the Task Force wanted to continue to highlight 
the need for a coordinated strategy and action on this issue.      

Financial Impact: N/A 

3. Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign 
 
In line with the previous recommendation, the Task Force had more specific recommendations around the 
Industrial Park, which include a crime prevention campaign for that area. Should Council support this idea, 
the Economic Development Work Plan and budget would be amended to shift resource away from the 
manufacturing cluster study and towards a strategy to make the Industrial Park less susceptible to crime. 
This would involve working with the Penticton Industrial Development Association and individual owners to 
do Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) analysis on individual properties and 
educating property owners on the importance of reporting crimes as well as other aspects.  
 

- 68 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 3 

Should Council support this initiative, it will be forwarded to the Safety and Security Advisory Committee 
when it resumes operation.  
 
Financial Impact: N/A 
 
4. “Love Local Penticton” campaign   

In discussing ways the City through its Economic Development Department could help local businesses, the 
Task Force supported the idea of a local feel good campaign. The Love Local Penticton campaign will 
highlight the efforts of the community to remain strong during the shutdown and the resiliency coming out 
of it. The campaign utilizes the City’s media channels to amplify the messaging from other agencies - such as 
Travel Penticton, the Downtown Penticton Association and create original content to highlight the business 
sector, not-for profit sector and arts and culture industry.      

Should Council support the continuation of the campaign, existing Economic Development Department and 
Communication Department resources will be utilized to tell stories and create a record of Penticton’s 
resilience through this period.   

Financial Impact:  The $15,000 cost associated with this initiative can be covered within the existing 
Economic Development budget by reallocating from Future Biz. 

Staff’s recommendation is for Council to direct staff to follow through on all the described initiatives and 
that the Economic Recovery Task Force be dissolved by the end of May. It is suggested that the economic 
recovery discussion be continued through the Economic Prosperity & Development Services Advisory 
Committee and the Safety and Security Advisory Committee for the remainder of this year. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Andrew Kemp 
Economic Development Specialist  

 

Concurrence  

Acting Director 
of Development 

Services  

Chief Financial 
Officer 

Chief Administrative 
Officer 

KK 
 

JWB 
 

DvD 
 

 

- 69 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 19, 2020       File No:    RMS/Address 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Ken Kunka, Deputy Director of Development Services 
Address: 293 Marina Way  
Subject: Penticton Yacht Club - Liquor Primary (Club) – Structural Change 

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council recommend to the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) that it supports the 
application from the Penticton Yacht Club located at 293 Marina Way for a Liquor Primary (Club) structural 
change to increase the exterior patio area and occupant load from 32 persons to 70 persons.  

Strategic priority objective 

Community Design: The City of Penticton will attract promote and support sustainable growth and 
development congruent with the community's vision for the future. 

Background 

The City has received a Liquor Primary (club) structural 
change application from the Penticton Yacht Club 
located at 293 Marina Way. Their intention is to add 
additional exterior patio space for their patrons with a 
proposed increased occupant load from 32 to 70 
persons. The existing licence conditions restrict patio 
service hours from 11:00am to 11:00pm (patio to be 
cleared by 11:00pm) with no amplified music on the 
patio.  

Site Context 

The current property is zoned P2 – Parks and Recreation 
and the proposed use meets zoning regulations. The 
property is relatively isolated with residential units to the 
south and mixed recreational spaces to the east, north 
and west.  

 

 

N  

- 70 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 8 

Liquor& Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) Legislation  

As per the Liquor Licensing Regulations the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) requests that the 
City review the application request and provide a resolution related to the following criteria:  

• Gather public input from the community within the immediate vicinity of the establishment,  
• The location of the establishment, person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment, . 
• The impact of noise on nearby residents,  
• The impact on the community if the application is approved, and  
• The view of residents and a description of the method used to gather views. 

 
Financial implication 
The public consultation process costs will be offset by the Liquor Review application fee.  

Analysis 

As part of the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) requirements, the City has conducted an 
assessment of the resolution criteria as well as conducting a public consultation review. In consideration of 
the criteria, the following information has been provided from staff and the City’s Liquor Licensing Technical 
Review Committee (LLTRC).  

Technical Review  

The Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) require that the local government considers and comments 
on five specific criteria location, capacity, hours of service, noise and impact on community. In consideration 
of these criteria, the following information has been provided from the City’s Liquor Licensing Technical 
Review Committee with regards to this application:  

The location of the establishment (patio):  

• The closest residential property is over 120m (south) of the patio location, 
• This portion of Marina Way has no designated road classification and traffic is limited to marina and 

tennis court usage, 
• Parking for increased occupant loads has been reviewed and meets Zoning regulations,  
• There is no other liquor establishments within 500m of the property.  

 The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment (patio): 

• The proposed patio will have a maximum of 70 patrons, which has been reviewed by the building 
department. There are no additional Code related safety or health requirements.  

• There will be no change to the existing licensed hours of operation.  
• COVID 19 protocols will be required to be followed, which is under the oversite of Interior Health, 

WorkSafe BC and the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB). 

The impact of noise on nearby residents: 

• There will be no change to the existing licensed hours of operation, 
• There is no permitted use of amplified music on the patio, 
• Staff have notified the application of noise concerns (see public consultation), 

- 71 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 8 

• To date the staff have recorded only one noise nuisance complaint over the last 24 months.  
• Any potential impact to the surrounding neighborhood will be governed by the City’s existing Bylaw 

regulations.  

The impact on the community if the application is approved:  

The proposal will complement the existing business model adding value to the Club members and 
community. 

Public Consultation  

As this application is an amendment to an existing licence, public notification was undertaken as part of staff 
and the LLTRC review. Input from local residents allows staff to engage with the applicant to address any 
concerns and provide mitigation measures prior to final recommendation to Council for endorsement. A 
notice of application and request for comment was mailed out to the business owners and residents within 
100m of the subject property (Attachment D).  

One letter of support and one letter of non-support was received at the time this report was prepared 
(included as Attachment E). The non-support letter highlighted potential noise generated from the patio 
and overall usage of the marina, which is not relevant to this application review but will be reviewed with 
the Club.  

Staff Recommendation:  

Based upon the comments received by the Liquor Licensing Technical Review Committee, staff and public 
consultation it is recommended that the proposed application be supported with no further restrictions. 
COVID 19 protocols will be required to be followed which may limit the maximum capacity of the patio. This 
final determination will be under the oversite of Interior Health, WorkSafe BC and the Liquor & Cannabis 
Regulation Branch (LCRB). 

Alternate recommendations 

Council can support the recommendation as provided by staff. Alternatively Council could deny support for 
the application. If that is the case the applicant will be informed of Council’s decision and a Council 
resolution outlining the reason for the denial is forwarded to LCRB.   

1. THAT Council deny the Penticton Yacht Club Liquor Primary (Club) structural change application.  

Attachments 
Attachment A – Site and Zoning Map   
Attachment B – Patio Plan layout  
Attachment C – Letter of Intent  
Attachment D – Public Consultation Map & Site Signage  
Attachment E – Public Consultation comments     

Respectfully submitted,   

Ken Kunka AScT, RBO 
Deputy Director of Development Services 

Director 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

- 72 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 8 

Attachment A 
Site Map 

 

  

- 73 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 8 

Attachment B 
Patio Layout 

 

 

N 

- 74 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 8 

Attachment C 
Applicant Impact Statement 

 
  

- 75 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 8 

Attachment D 
Public Consultation Map and Site Sign 

 

 

 

 

- 76 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 8 

 
Attachment E 

Public Consultation Comments 
 

For 
We own and live in unit XXX, Lakeview Terrace's and are in favor of the application. This will enhance the 
area and create more desirable activity in the area. 
Tom and Pat Lawrence  

 
Against 

 

 

- 77 -



- 78 -



 

 
Council Report 

 

   

 

 

Date: May 19, 2020       File No:    RMS/690 Nelson Ave 
To: Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 
From: Steven Collyer, Planner 1 
Address: 690 Nelson Avenue  
 
Subject: Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754   

 

Staff Recommendation 

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754” for Lot 35 District Lot 250 Osoyoos 
Division Yale District Plan 842, located at 690 Nelson Avenue, a permit to reduce the front yard setback from 
4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side yard setback from 3.0m to 1.7m, and to reduce the interior side 
yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m to allow for the construction of an addition and covered porch on the 
existing single detached dwelling; 

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754”. 

Strategic Priority Objective 

Community Design: The City of Penticton will attract, 
promote and support sustainable growth and development 
congruent with the community’s vision for the future. 

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to construct a 1.6 m2 (17.5 ft2) 
addition on the existing single detached dwelling and add a 9 
m2 (97 ft2) covered porch extending 1.35m (4.5 ft) from the 
building face towards King Street. The existing building 
setbacks do not meet the current requirements of the R2 
zone, and as such the applicant has submitted this 
Development Variance Permit application to legalize the 
existing setbacks and proceed with the proposed 
development.  

 

 Figure 1 - Property Location Map 

- 79 -



 
Council Report  Page 2 of 14 

Background 

The subject property is located at the corner of Nelson Avenue and King Street (Figure 1). The lands contain 
a single detached dwelling with parking accessed from the rear lane. The property is zoned R2 - Small Lot 
Residential and is designated ‘Detached Residential’ by the City’s Official Community Plan (OCP). 

The subject property is located in a primarily residential neighbourhood, consisting of single detached 
dwellings along King Street to the south and along Nelson Ave. There are a few multifamily residential uses 
further north along King Street and a mix of commercial and residential uses along Government Street to 
the west. 

The applicant has begun renovations under an approved Building Permit, as described in the Letter of Intent 
(Attachment ‘D’). The applicant wishes to make two external changes to the dwelling by ‘squaring off’ the 
current entrance to extend the living room space inside, and to add a covered porch facing King Street 
where the new primary entrance will be located. These two proposed external projects have resulted in the 
subject Development Variance Permit application coming forward. 

Technical Review 

The Planning and Building Departments have worked with the applicant on the existing Building Permit and 
the current Development Variance Permit application. Should the requested variances be approved by 
Council, a revision to the building permit will be implemented to proceed with the changes to the entrance, 
the enclosing of the current entrance, and the construction of the covered porch. The applicant has 
requested a King Street address, which will be processed through the Building Permit application. 

Development Statistics 

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the 
application: 

 R2 Zone Requirement Provided on Plans 
Minimum Lot Width: 15 m 10 m * 
Minimum Lot Area: 390 m2 348 m2 * 
Maximum Lot Coverage: 40% Approx. 30% 
Vehicle Parking: 2 spaces 2 spaces 
Required Setbacks 
Front Yard (King Street): 
Exterior Side Yard (Nelson Avenue): 
Interior Side Yard (south): 
Rear Yard (lane): 

 
4.5 m 
3.0 m 
1.5 m 
6.0 m 

 
2.7 m (existing) - Variance Requested 
1.7 m (existing) - Variance Requested 
1.3 m (existing) - Variance Requested 
17.8 m (existing) 

Maximum Building Height 10.5 m 3.35 m 

Other Information: 
* The subdivision regulations for lot width and lot area only apply 
to the creation of new lots, and not to existing lots. 

 

 

- 80 -



 
Council Report  Page 3 of 14 

Analysis 

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider if there is a hardship on 
the property that makes following the bylaw difficult or impossible, whether approval of the variance would 
cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties, and if the variance request is reasonable. 

The proposed development maintains the residential character of the existing dwelling and maintains the 
intent of the Detached Residential designation. In addition, the proposed works are aligned with the 
following OCP policy 

OCP Policy 
4.1.4.1 

Work with the development community – architects, designers and builders – to create 
new residential developments that are attractive, high-quality, energy efficient, 
appropriately scale and respectful of their context. 

 

Staff have reviewed the application and are recommending approval based on the following: 

1. The current setbacks are legal non-conforming, creating a hardship for the applicant when planning 
any exterior additions. 

The existing house was originally built approximately 100 years ago with the previous additions 
completed in the 1960s, prior to the current setback 
requirements. This presents challenges to the applicant 
now that they are underway with renovations to the 
dwelling and wish to add a 1.6 m2 (17.5 ft2) addition at the 
corner and a covered porch facing King Street. Although 
the proposed addition is consistent with the existing 
setbacks, new construction is required to meet the current 
setback requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. The applicant 
experiences a hardship to follow these requirements in that 
there is no opportunity to do either exterior project while 
following the current Zoning Bylaw requirements. The 
proposed addition follows the existing building setbacks, 
essentially filling in the corner which has an existing 
concrete pad for the main entrance (Figure 2). This does 
not extend the building face any closer to Nelson Avenue or King Street than the current structure. 

2. The ongoing interior renovations and proposed exterior additions provide positive impacts to the 
surrounding neighbourhood.  

The investment to renovate older housing stock can have positive impacts on the surrounding 
neighbourhood. The renovations and proposed addition and covered porch are anticipated to 
improve the curb appeal of the home and re-orient the home to face King Street. The covered porch 
will lead to the building facing King Street, provide additional amenity space for future residents, 
and create a valuable semi-private realm on the property. Several homes fronting King Street in the 
adjacent area have covered entrances or porches. Covered porches provide the opportunity for 

Figure 2 - Location of Proposed Exterior 
 

- 81 -



 
Council Report  Page 4 of 14 

better engagement with the street; residents can casually observe activity on the street from the 
covered porch and engage with neighbours passing by. 

3. The requested variances are considered minor in nature and reasonable in this instance. 

The proposed addition is 1.6 m2 (17.5 ft2) in area. The proposed covered porch is 9 m2 (97 ft2) in area. 
The proposed covered porch will project 1.35m from the building face, which is less than the 
maximum 1.5m projection allowed into the required front yard by the Zoning Bylaw (Section 4.9). 
Should the variance be approved, this projection will be measured from the adjusted 2.7m front 
yard setback. Both of these external changes function to re-orient the building to face King Street in 
a positive way.  

Staff consider the request to reduce the front yard setback from 4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side 
yard setback from 3.0m to 1.7m, and to reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m reasonable. 
As such, staff are recommending that Council approve the Development Variance Permit. 

Alternate Recommendations 

Council may feel the proposed development is not in keeping with the character of the neighbourhood, or 
that the variance request is unreasonable. If this is the case, Council should deny the Development Variance 
Permit. This would require the applicant to amend their plans to come up with a design which meets the 
Zoning Bylaw regulations. Staff are recommending against this option, as in staff’s opinion the variance 
request is reasonable. 

1. THAT Council deny “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754” for Lot 35 District Lot 250 Osoyoos 
Division Yale District Plan 842, located at 690 Nelson Avenue, a permit to reduce the front yard 
setback from 4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side yard setback from 3.0m to 1.7m, and to 
reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m to allow for the construction of an addition 
and covered porch on the existing single detached dwelling. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – Zoning Map of Subject Property 
Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map of Subject Property 
Attachment C – Images of Subject Property 
Attachment D – Letter of Intent 
Attachment E – Survey Sketch of Subject Property 
Attachment F – Development Plans 
Attachment G – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754 
 

Respectfully submitted,          Concurrence  

 

Steven Collyer 
Planner 1 

Director 
Chief Administrative 

Officer 

BL 
 

DvD 
 

- 82 -



 
Council Report  Page 5 of 14 

Attachment A – Zoning Map of Subject Property 

 
  

- 83 -



 
Council Report  Page 6 of 14 

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map of Subject Property 

 
  

- 84 -



 
Council Report  Page 7 of 14 

Attachment C – Images of Subject Property 
 

 

 
  

Nelson Ave 

King St 

Subject Property: 
690 Nelson Ave 

Entrance to 
be enclosed 

Location of 
proposed 

covered porch 

- 85 -



 
Council Report  Page 8 of 14 

 

Subject Property: 
690 Nelson Ave 1115 King St 

- 86 -



 
Council Report  Page 9 of 14 

Attachment D – Letter of Intent

- 87 -



 
Council Report  Page 10 of 14 

 
  

- 88 -



 
Council Report  Page 11 of 14 

Attachment E – Survey Sketch of Subject Property 

 
  

- 89 -



 
Council Report  Page 12 of 14 

Attachment F – Development Plans 

 

- 90 -



 
Council Report  Page 13 of 14 

 

- 91 -



 
Council Report  Page 14 of 14 

 
 

- 92 -



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT

DVP PL2020-8754 Page 1 of 5

- 93 -



DRAFT

DVP PL2020-8754 Page 2 of 5

- 94 -



ffiÏ

Exlsîri{q.

I
tltPpcnssä

Ë,i.ûâ 9r drs hf Nutsnn A*¿ tfrsy,/

I

ffi ru

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2020-8754

DVP PL2020-8754 Page 3 of 5

- 95 -



'Ï--"

s.tvl

' ""' '- #tÐtrt{e&ñå
r¡ñült vt{ltriI / At¡r{Jt-

þlft srr3 'rf 1u¡n¡Ð

Ert
E
o
e
Þ4
-¡rl

(aþur-t orur
UøoO..h'ü¡r'¡l

sAsu¡sü -

+

{v}:qura .çrqnqrg,g¡5f

^lNwtþt q

Sttouleli

'.ig Ðf*f#

(rwrrn*r)

rs&t
)ilrÂn
' Ir:"'" "''

oWOrutU:$
'Ðü*ilf#

qflr*ils
,)¡rnl^tøl +rr

(nt

I

I

I
,l

I

nr

i'
leñiúwi
r. '" lffiH
Irru sas

$nP¡$53

tüH.tgt

"ærtax
Þ l*r¿ç1p¡

?** fi#H',
Je"å01

''¡tu¿åQ -" dlNf, Å$ ?Frrï4 - ruã¡rËs? '3-N"" å$#f?ùtl

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2020-8754

DVP PL2020-8754 Page 4 of 5

- 96 -



srñc 91 (easr)rxo, - år.ltrua t fRopose¡ )

tl.t { ti

It

:t*o *lt-o-ç-'.
Etqgtr¡ttê ftPo'Ë* t'l

>Qrç .Lli Itt
.-F'!¡--(tF ,* - * 'ù'*5'

¡iËü*¡

-.dlF-ery??:i
: ,å,rr¡¡ß

åßa¡er¡ål¡
Rm toütt-

fïiirr

I

;r
Þ(t$il*tt*6
ltfgtrg¡ '

offtô
(r#J(

$ï6Es
FrfF,p'
w ite.r-
t Âc,/*unmo
Bû:Ts.

:'

frn'lg
bts:rp
¡g{k*l
6

#tlr.
l

ß'- þlsrs- t'tË'
r ådu.ô ..i S€$*(ri

I

I

g*{#! î#rt

f

ÊÇo*Ê ð*,

fÅ u'*ltr*&

il
t']t.i

L]

Sch
edule 'A

' 

DVP PL2020-8754

DVP PL2020-8754 Page 5 of 5

- 97 -



 
 

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09  Page 1 of 1 
 

The Corporation of the City of Penticton 
 

Bylaw No. 2020-09 
  

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting 
assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
  
1. Title: 
 
 This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09”. 
 
2. Amendment: 
 

2.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Rezone Lot 3 District Lot 198 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25054, located at 2301 
Baskin Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing). 

 
2.2 Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST time this 21 day of April, 2020 

READ A SECOND time this 5 day of May, 2020 

READ A THIRD time this 5 day of May, 2020 

RECEIVED the approval of the 
Ministry of Transportation on the 

6 day of May, 2020 

ADOPTED this  day of  2020 

 
Council resolved to waive the public hearing on April 21, 2020 and notice of intention to waive public hearing for this bylaw was 
published on the 23 day of April, 2020 and the 28 day of April, 2020 in the Penticton Herald newspaper, pursuant to Section 467 of the 
Local Government Act.   
 

      
 John Vassilaki, Mayor 

 
 
 

       
 Angie Collison, Corporate Officer 

- 98 -



City of Penticton – Schedule ‘A’

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09

Date: _________________ Corporate Officer:  _______________________________

2301 Baskin Street

Rezone from R2 (Small Lot Residential) 
to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing)

- 99 -



- 100 -



- 101 -



- 102 -



- 103 -



- 104 -



- 105 -



- 106 -


	3.1 - 2020-05-05 Regular Minutes
	1. Call to Order
	The Mayor called the Electronic Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.
	2. Application of rules of procedure
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	4. Adoption of Minutes:
	5. Consent Agenda:
	6. Correspondence:
	6.1 Proclamation “Building Safety Month” May 2020
	6.2 Removal of property from the City of Penticton Heritage Registry
	6.3 Penticton Farmers’ Market
	7. Staff Reports:
	8. Bylaws and Permits:
	9. Council Round Table
	10. Adjournment to a Closed Meeting:

	5.1 - Letter to council - BC Seniors Week
	5.1a - 2020-06-01 Seniors week - proclamation
	5.2 - Letter to Council - Slackwater Brewing Patio - 218 Martin St
	5.3 - Correspondence - City of North Vancouver - Making Liquor Licensing More Flexible
	5.3a - Correspondence - City of Nanaimo
	6.1 - Report - 2019 Audited Fianncial Statements
	6.1a - Attachment A - Management Report
	6.1b - Attachment B - Audit Report
	6.1c - Attachment C - Draft Financial Statements Council
	6.2 - Report - Permissive Tax Exemption Policy Amendment
	6.2a - Attachment A - Amended Permissive Tax Exemption Policy
	6.2b - Attachment B - Permissive Tax Exemption Policy April 2, 2019
	6.3 - Report - Economic Recovery Task Force Recommendations
	6.4 - Report - Penticton Yacht Club - Liquor Primary (Club) - Structural Change
	6.4a - Penticton Yacht Club Correspondence
	6.5 - Report - Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754 - 690 Nelson Avenue
	6.5a - DRAFT DVP PL2020-8754
	DRAFT DVP PL2020-8754
	Schedule A

	7.1 - 2020-09 Zoning Amendment - 2301 Baskin Street
	7.1a - 2020-09 Schedule A (2020-09)
	Slide Number 1

	7.1b - Development Permit PL2019-8613 - 2301 Baskin Street


[image: ]



Minutes











Electronic Regular Council Meeting[footnoteRef:1] [1:  In accordance with the Province of BC Ministerial Order No. M139, the Council of the City of Penticton is participating in the meeting by electronic means, without public attendance and may adopt a bylaw on the same day as third reading.] 


held at City of Penticton 
via WebEx www.penticton.ca 



Tuesday, May 5, 2020

at 1:00 p.m.





Present:	Mayor Vassilaki  

		Councillor Bloomfield 

		Councillor Kimberley 

		Councillor Regehr

		Councillor Robinson

		Councillor Sentes 

		Councillor Watt 



			Staff:		Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer 

					Angie Collison, Corporate Officer

					Jim Bauer, Chief Financial Officer 

					Blake Laven, Director of Development Services

					Mitch Moroziuk, General Manager of Infrastructure 

					

		

1. Call to Order



The Mayor called the Electronic Regular Council Meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.



2. Application of rules of procedure



107/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council authorize that all regular meetings, special meetings, and committee meetings of the City of Penticton be conducted by electronic means allowing all members of Council, to attend electronically for the duration of the British Columbia provincial state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 

AND THAT Council restrict public attendance at open meetings for the duration of the British Columbia provincial state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic;

AND THAT Council temporarily suspend the voting at meeting procedures (Council Procedure Bylaw No. 2018-35 25.(1)(b)) and when ready to vote and the question is called those in favor will say “In favour” and those opposed will say “opposed” for the duration of the British Columbia provincial state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

					

3. Adoption of Agenda

	

108/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council adopt the agenda for the Electronic Regular Council Meeting held on 

May 5, 2020 as amended to include correspondence from Penticton Farmers’ Market as item 6.3 and add correspondence from Cantex to item 7.1. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



4. Adoption of Minutes:



		4.1	Minutes of the April 21, 2020 Electronic Regular Meeting of Council 



109/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

	THAT Council adopt the minutes of the April 21, 2020 Electronic Regular Meeting of Council as presented. 

	CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



		4.2	Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Electronic Special Meeting of Council 



110/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

	THAT Council adopt the minutes of the April 23, 2020 Electronic Special Meeting of Council as presented. 

	CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. Consent Agenda:



111/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

	THAT Council approve the Consent Agenda:

1. Penticton and Ellis Creek Restoration Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of March 11, 2020;

2. Safety and Security Committee Meeting Draft Minutes of March 16, 2020.    

	CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



6. Correspondence: 



The meeting recessed at 1:09 p.m. due to livestream issues and reconvened at 1:19 p.m. 



        6.1	Proclamation “Building Safety Month” May 2020



112/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council proclaim May 2020 as Building Safety Month.  

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



  	6.2	Removal of property from the City of Penticton Heritage Registry 

			Re: 452 Lakeshore Drive 



113/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council remove the property located at 452 Lakeshore Drive from the City of Penticton Heritage Registry.   

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY









 	6.3	Penticton Farmers’ Market 



114/2020	It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council refer the correspondence from the Penticton Farmers’ Market dated May 3, 2020 to Emergency Operations Centre. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



7. Staff Reports:



7.1 	Ellis Creek Master Plan 	

		

115/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council respond to the issues raised by Cantex in their letter of February 12, 2020 and in their presentation at the Committee of the Whole on March 3, 2020 with respect to the Ellis Creek Master Plan by:

1. Requesting Cantex to complete, at their cost, a Riparian Area Regulations Report and Environmental Assessment Report encompassing Ellis Creek along the Cantex property extents to determine the Stream Side Protection Area and the Environmental protection area required for the proposed industrial park plan;

2. That the two above noted documents be submitted to the City and the Province of BC to determine if they are acceptable as per the BC reg. 178/2019 Riparian Areas Protection Regulation and City Riparian Area and Environmental Development Permit Area guidelines; and

3. That should Cantex decide to proceed with their subdivision development, after hearing from the Province of BC and the City about the status of their Riparian Area Regulations Report and Environmental Assessment Report, that the City sole source to Stantec Consulting Ltd. a $165,000 contract to complete a full Predesign Report, including discussions with the Penticton Indian Band, for the reach of Ellis Creek through the Cantex property as outlined in the Stantec letter proposal of November 22, 2019.

AND THAT the 2021 capital budget consider the $165,000 required for the predesign.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



116/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council approve the Ellis Creek Master Plan dated March 18, 2020 (Attachment A), as a guiding document which includes the amendments suggested by the Penticton Creek and Ellis Creek Restoration Committee at their March 11, 2020 meeting.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



The meeting recessed at 2:40 p.m. for a 15 minute break and reconvened at 2:55 p.m.



7.2 	BC Transit City of Penticton Annual Operating Agreement 2020-2021		

		

117/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council authorize the Mayor and Corporate Officer to execute the 2020 - 2021 Annual Operating Agreement Conventional and Custom Transit as contained in Attachment ”A”.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY





7.3 	Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 2020-10



118/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 2020-10”, a bylaw to provide for the borrowing of money in anticipation of revenue;

AND THAT Council adopt “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw No. 2020-10”.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



7.4 	Property Tax Grant

					

119/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council approve the following resolution under sections 20(2) and 21(a) of the Community Charter:

The taxpayers and residents of the City are living with the COVID-19 pandemic, and Council anticipates various levels of provincial orders and guidelines over the remainder of the 2020 tax year that can only be enforced by the Province and not by the City under BC law. Accordingly, in order to see that social distancing, reopening, and other provincial requirements are properly carried out in the City, and in order to manage the City’s resources and property tax regime, the City under sections 20(2) and 21(a) of the Community Charter offers to enter and does hereby enter a partnering agreement with each property taxpayer that constitutes a business, under which the taxpayer executes and delivers a City standard form partnering agreement under section 21(a) of the Community Charter to provide an activity, facility, work or similar service on behalf of the City, including on behalf of the City the enforcement of section 9 of COVID-19 Order 084 of the Province, the COVID-19 Guidelines of the Provincial Health Officer, and other provincial orders and guidelines governing social distancing, isolation and reopening in relation to the business and the premises of the business. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



7.5 	Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2020-16 

					

120/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2020-16”, a bylaw that establishes property taxation rates for the 2020 tax year;

AND THAT Council adopt “Tax Rates Bylaw No. 2020-16”.

CARRIED

Councillor Regehr, Opposed



7.6 	Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-15

Re: Appendix 7, 25, 29 – Utility Fees

					

121/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-15”, a bylaw which reduces applicable utility rates by 10% in order to provide the prompt payment discount for all rate payers;

AND THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-15”.

CARRIED

Councillor Bloomfield, Opposed

7.7 	Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-17

Re: Business Licensing and Building Permitting Fees

					

122/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give first, second and third reading to “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-17”, a bylaw that temporarily reduces certain fees & charges relating to business licensing and building permitting due to COVID-19;

AND THAT Council adopt “Fees and Charges Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-17”.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



7.8 	Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734

Development Permit PL2020-8732

Re: 285 Westminster Avenue West 

					

123/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734”, for Lot 1 District Lot 4 Group 7 Similkameen Division Yale (Formerly Yale Lytton) District Plan EPP99696, located at 285 Westminster Avenue West, a permit to vary Section 6.1.5.3 of Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08, to increase the maximum percentage (%) of off-street small car parking spaces from 25% to 44%; 

AND THAT staff be directed to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734”;

AND THAT Council, subject to approval of “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8734”, approve “Development Permit PL2020-8732”, for 285 Westminster Avenue West, a permit to allow for the construction of a 5-storey mixed-use development featuring 75 residential units and approximately2,400sq. ft. of ground floor commercial retail space.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



7.9 	Development Permit PL2019-8654

Re: 3352 Hemlock Street

					

124/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2019-8654”, for Lot 1 District Lot 189 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan KAP90435, located at 3352 Hemlock Street, a permit to allow for the construction of a 6-storey, 165-unit apartment building;

AND THAT Council approve, through the issuance of “Development Permit PL2019-8654”, in accordance with Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2019-08, Section 5.1.4.3, a minor variance to at-grade amenity area requirements, that does not reduce at-grade amenity space to less than 10% of the total required amenity area;

AND THAT staff be directed to issue “Development Permit PL2019-8654”.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



7.10 	Development Variance Permit PL2020-8720

Re: 1384 Commercial Way

					

125/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council deny “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8720”, for Lot 6 District Lot 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 17297, located at 1384 Commercial Way, a permit to allow razor wire fencing.

DEFEATED 

Mayor Vassilaki, Councillors Bloomfield, Regehr, and Watt, Opposed

126/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8720”, for Lot 6 District Lot 3821S Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 17297, located at 1384 Commercial Way, a permit to allow razor wire fencing.

CARRIED

Councillors Kimberley, Robinson, and Sentes, Opposed 



8. Bylaws and Permits: 



8.1 	Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08

	Development Permit PL2019-8613     

	Re: 352 Winnipeg Street



127/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08”;

AND THAT Council approve “Development Permit PL2019-8613”. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



[bookmark: _GoBack]8.2 	Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09

	Re: 2301 Baskin Street



128/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09”.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



8.3 	Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-12

	Re: 130 and 152 Greenwood Drive



129/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08”;

AND THAT Council adopt “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-08”. 

CARRIED

Councillor Robinson, Opposed



8.4 	Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-13

	Re: 418 Scott Avenue



130/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-13”.

DEFEATED

Mayor Vassilaki, Councillors Regehr, Robinson, and Sentes, Opposed



131/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council close and abandon “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-13”.

CARRIED

Councillor Kimberley, Opposed









8.5 	Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-14

	Re: 154 Brunswick Street



132/2020		It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council give second and third reading to “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-14”.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



9. Council Round Table 



10. Adjournment to a Closed Meeting: 



133/2020			It was MOVED and SECONDED

THAT Council adjourn at 5:04 p.m. to a closed meeting of Council pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter as follows: Section 90 (1)

(c)        labour relations or other employee relations;

Section 90 (2) (c)   a matter that is being investigated under the Ombudsperson Act of which the municipality has been notified under section 14 [Ombudsperson to notify authority] of that Act.

			CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  



Certified correct:						Confirmed:



	





____________________________	______________________________

Angie Collison		John Vassilaki 

Corporate Officer		Mayor

	







			

Minutes of May 5, 2020 Electronic Regular Council Meeting		Page 6 of 7





image1.jpeg

SRmtictors D)

9G¥

I LRI penticonaa]

o







[image: ]



Council Report







Date:	May 19, 2020								File No:	   1970-04
To:	Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer
From:	Amber Coates, Revenue Supervisor


Subject:	Permissive Tax Exemption Policy Amendment  



Staff Recommendation

THAT Council approve the amended “Permissive Tax Exemption Policy”, a policy that provides direction on the requirements and evaluation of applications made pursuant to Section 224 of the Community Charter.



Strategic priority objective

Mission: Penticton will serve its residents, businesses and visitors through good governance, partnership and the provision of effective and community focused services.



Background

Local governments have the authority to exempt eligible properties from property taxation for a specified period of time. Such exemptions must be provided by bylaw. Permissive exemptions are different to statutory exemptions, which are automatic and not at the discretion of a local government.

The authority to grant permissive exemptions allows municipalities to promote or achieve goals deemed to be of high importance to the local community.  These often include societies and non-profits providing support services, programs, and housing to at-risk members of the community, as well as those that provide increased well-being to members of the community at large.

Local governments are limited by Section 224 of the Community Charter as to which types or applicants and services may be considered for Permissive Tax Exemption. Exemptions provided for in Section 224 are at the discretion of Council and there is no obligation to give the exemption.

During the 2020 Permissive Tax Exemption bylaw readings in September 2019 and later adoption October 18, 2019, staff was requested to review and come forward with potential changes to section 3.14 of the policy as the policy-stated cap of 1.68% was exceeded.

Analysis

Staff revisited the summary table of practices followed by other municipalities from the large update performed on the policy in 2019.

		Municipality

		Published Cap

		Categories

		Last Updated



		City of Vernon

		None

3 year phase-in

		Yes

Based on Resident Benefit

		2018



		City of Kelowna

		None

		None

		2017



		District of West Kelowna

		None

		Yes

Based on Resident Benefit

		2015



		District of Summerland

		None

		None

		2014



		Town of Oliver

		None

		None

		2011



		City of Kamloops

		Amount Set each Cycle

		Yes

Based on Type

		2016



		City of Victoria

		1.60% of taxes +

Category %

		Yes

Based on Type

		2013



		City of Abbotsford

		Amount Set at Budget

		Yes

Based on Resident Benefit

		2016



		City of Courtenay

		2.00% of taxes +

Category %

		Yes

Based on Resident Benefit

		2017



		Township of Langley

		None

		Yes

Based on Type

		2006



		City of Penticton

(current)

		1.68% of taxes

		Yes

Based on Type

		2019







The two most common mechanisms in use for limiting taxes foregone are a percentage cap per category, or a percentage cap based on the general municipal tax amounts.  Suggested options for either of those two mechanisms are provided in the alternate recommendations 1 and 2 respectively.

In consideration of the discussion at the September and October Council meetings last year that limiting the assistance to organizations that benefit from permissive tax exemptions and in turn benefit the community is not desirable in a wholesale fashion. Instead, staff is recommending that Council be provided with an overview of new applicants, or applications where organizations have made significant changes to their property or services. This approach will help to ensure the services align with the community priorities and needs prior to providing the applicant with a permissive tax exemption through the annual bylaw adoption. Returning applicants with no significant changes and that continue to qualify under the Community Charter would automatically be included at the full 100%.

In this way, Council and returning applicants with no significant changes will be assured of continuation of services provided, but Council will have the opportunity to review and discuss significant changes or new applications to ensure they are suited to the community and should be provided the benefit of a permissive tax exemption prior to the property being adopted into the annual bylaw.



Alternate recommendations

1. THAT Council direct staff to remove the property taxes foregone percentage in section 3.14 and instead incorporate a maximum percentage per Evaluation Category:

· Affordable Rental Housing: 100%

· Special Needs and Supportive Housing: 100%

· Health, Safety and Social Service properties: 100%

· Arts, Cultural and Heritage facilities: 80%

· Parks, Recreation and Sports facilities: 80%

· Places of Worship, Private School and Hospitals ancillary properties: 100%



2. THAT Council direct staff to amend the cap for the property taxes foregone percentage in section 3.14 of the policy at 2.00% as opposed to the current 1.68%.



3. THAT Council direct staff to continue to use the current Permissive Tax Exemption policy.



Attachments

Attachment A – Amended Permissive Tax Exemption Policy (Proposed)

Attachment B – Permissive Tax Exemption Policy



Respectfully submitted,

Amber Coates
Revenue Supervisor



Concurrence 

		Chief Financial Officer 



		Chief Administrative Officer



		JWB

		

[bookmark: _GoBack]DvD









		



Council Report		Page 3 of 3

image1.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |







[image: ]



Council Report







Date:	May 19, 2020 								File No:	   6750-20
To:	Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer
From:	Andrew Kemp, Economic Development Specialist 


Subject:	Economic Recovery Task Force Recommendations  



Staff Recommendation

THAT Council support the following initiatives recommended by the Economic Recovery Task Force to assist the community in the recovery from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic: 

· Waive fees for sidewalk/storefront use permits and relax design standards for 2020;

· Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP; 

· Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign; 

· Support recovery efforts through the “Love Local Penticton” campaign, which has started;  

AND THAT Council direct staff to begin implementation of the initiatives.

Strategic priority objective

Vision: A vibrant, innovative, healthy waterfront city focused on sustainability, community and economic opportunity. 

Background

The COVID-19 pandemic is having a profound impact on our community both economically and psychologically. In response to the pandemic, the Economic Development Department has convened an Economic Recovery Task Force with key local businesses and community leaders to advise the City on potential policy changes and financial assistance ideas to provide relief to the community and assist in recovery from the pandemic. The Task Force have been meeting on a regular basis and have made the following recommendations:

1. Waive fees for sidewalk / street use permits for 2020 

2. Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP   

3. Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign 

4. Support recovery efforts through a “Love Local Penticton” campaign  



Analysis and Financial Implications 

Staff are supportive of all 4 recommendations made by the task force and can provide the following analysis / comment:

1. Waive fees for sidewalk/storefront use permits and relax design standards for 2020



As businesses, specifically food and beverage and retail, begin to re-open and pivot their operational plans, there will be increased demand to utilize City sidewalks for patios and retail space. It is likely that restaurants will only be able to open at half capacity, making it difficult to survive financially. Utilizing outdoor space, where transmission of virus is much less of a concern, businesses may be able to increase the number of seats. In addition, patios and sidewalk uses add vibrancy to the streetscape. 



Removing the permit costs and relaxing some of the design standards for storefront patios and sidewalk retail display areas will encourage more businesses to take advantage of the areas in front of their storefronts. Staff have also continued to improve efficiencies to help support the retail and food services industry with a fast, flexible, and nimble permitting and business services to help them get back up and running. Should council support this approach, staff will bring a report to Council that will proposed amended policies and bylaws that deal with patios and allow for more seating and ensure social distancing is met. 



Financial Impact: Approximately $4,000 



2. Continue to look for ways to promote safety and security city wide, supporting Bylaw and RCMP   

Task Force members continue to highlight the pervasive property crime issues aimed at local businesses and the frustrations with the lack of progress on detaining caught perpetrators. There is the fear that as the long term financial impacts of COVID are realized that these activities will worsen. The Task Force was extremely sympathetic to Superintendent Hunter’s presentation to Council and want to ensure the Council knows that continued Bylaw Enforcement and RCMP resources are needed. 

While this recommendation does not have an easy solution, the Task Force wanted to continue to highlight the need for a coordinated strategy and action on this issue.     

Financial Impact: N/A

3. Support the security of the industrial park through a Crime Prevention campaign



In line with the previous recommendation, the Task Force had more specific recommendations around the Industrial Park, which include a crime prevention campaign for that area. Should Council support this idea, the Economic Development Work Plan and budget would be amended to shift resource away from the manufacturing cluster study and towards a strategy to make the Industrial Park less susceptible to crime. This would involve working with the Penticton Industrial Development Association and individual owners to do Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) analysis on individual properties and educating property owners on the importance of reporting crimes as well as other aspects. 



Should Council support this initiative, it will be forwarded to the Safety and Security Advisory Committee when it resumes operation. 



Financial Impact: N/A



4. “Love Local Penticton” campaign  

In discussing ways the City through its Economic Development Department could help local businesses, the Task Force supported the idea of a local feel good campaign. The Love Local Penticton campaign will highlight the efforts of the community to remain strong during the shutdown and the resiliency coming out of it. The campaign utilizes the City’s media channels to amplify the messaging from other agencies - such as Travel Penticton, the Downtown Penticton Association and create original content to highlight the business sector, not-for profit sector and arts and culture industry.     

Should Council support the continuation of the campaign, existing Economic Development Department and Communication Department resources will be utilized to tell stories and create a record of Penticton’s resilience through this period.  

Financial Impact:  The $15,000 cost associated with this initiative can be covered within the existing Economic Development budget by reallocating from Future Biz.

Staff’s recommendation is for Council to direct staff to follow through on all the described initiatives and that the Economic Recovery Task Force be dissolved by the end of May. It is suggested that the economic recovery discussion be continued through the Economic Prosperity & Development Services Advisory Committee and the Safety and Security Advisory Committee for the remainder of this year.





[bookmark: _GoBack]Respectfully submitted,

Andrew Kemp
Economic Development Specialist 



Concurrence 

		Acting Director of Development Services 

		Chief Financial Officer

		Chief Administrative Officer



		KK

		

JWB

		

DvD









		



Council Report		Page 2 of 3

image1.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |







[image: ]



Council Report











Date:	May 19, 2020							File No:	   RMS/Address
To:	Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer
From:	Ken Kunka, Deputy Director of Development Services

Address:	293 Marina Way 

Subject:	Penticton Yacht Club - Liquor Primary (Club) – Structural Change



Staff Recommendation

THAT Council recommend to the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) that it supports the application from the Penticton Yacht Club located at 293 Marina Way for a Liquor Primary (Club) structural change to increase the exterior patio area and occupant load from 32 persons to 70 persons. 

Strategic priority objective

Community Design: The City of Penticton will attract promote and support sustainable growth and development congruent with the community's vision for the future.

Background[image: ]



The City has received a Liquor Primary (club) structural change application from the Penticton Yacht Club located at 293 Marina Way. Their intention is to add additional exterior patio space for their patrons with a proposed increased occupant load from 32 to 70 persons. The existing licence conditions restrict patio service hours from 11:00am to 11:00pm (patio to be cleared by 11:00pm) with no amplified music on the patio. N 



Site Context

The current property is zoned P2 – Parks and Recreation and the proposed use meets zoning regulations. The property is relatively isolated with residential units to the south and mixed recreational spaces to the east, north and west. 



Liquor& Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) Legislation 

As per the Liquor Licensing Regulations the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) requests that the City review the application request and provide a resolution related to the following criteria: 

· Gather public input from the community within the immediate vicinity of the establishment, 

· The location of the establishment, person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment, .

· The impact of noise on nearby residents, 

· The impact on the community if the application is approved, and 

· The view of residents and a description of the method used to gather views.



Financial implication

The public consultation process costs will be offset by the Liquor Review application fee. 

Analysis

As part of the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB) requirements, the City has conducted an assessment of the resolution criteria as well as conducting a public consultation review. In consideration of the criteria, the following information has been provided from staff and the City’s Liquor Licensing Technical Review Committee (LLTRC). 

Technical Review 

The Liquor Control and Licensing Branch (LCLB) require that the local government considers and comments on five specific criteria location, capacity, hours of service, noise and impact on community. In consideration of these criteria, the following information has been provided from the City’s Liquor Licensing Technical Review Committee with regards to this application: 

The location of the establishment (patio): 

· The closest residential property is over 120m (south) of the patio location,

· This portion of Marina Way has no designated road classification and traffic is limited to marina and tennis court usage,

· Parking for increased occupant loads has been reviewed and meets Zoning regulations, 

· There is no other liquor establishments within 500m of the property. 

 The person capacity and hours of liquor service of the establishment (patio):

· The proposed patio will have a maximum of 70 patrons, which has been reviewed by the building department. There are no additional Code related safety or health requirements. 

· There will be no change to the existing licensed hours of operation. 

· COVID 19 protocols will be required to be followed, which is under the oversite of Interior Health, WorkSafe BC and the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB).

The impact of noise on nearby residents:

· There will be no change to the existing licensed hours of operation,

· There is no permitted use of amplified music on the patio,

· Staff have notified the application of noise concerns (see public consultation),

· To date the staff have recorded only one noise nuisance complaint over the last 24 months. 

· Any potential impact to the surrounding neighborhood will be governed by the City’s existing Bylaw regulations. 

The impact on the community if the application is approved: 

The proposal will complement the existing business model adding value to the Club members and community.

Public Consultation 

As this application is an amendment to an existing licence, public notification was undertaken as part of staff and the LLTRC review. Input from local residents allows staff to engage with the applicant to address any concerns and provide mitigation measures prior to final recommendation to Council for endorsement. A notice of application and request for comment was mailed out to the business owners and residents within 100m of the subject property (Attachment D). 

One letter of support and one letter of non-support was received at the time this report was prepared (included as Attachment E). The non-support letter highlighted potential noise generated from the patio and overall usage of the marina, which is not relevant to this application review but will be reviewed with the Club. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Based upon the comments received by the Liquor Licensing Technical Review Committee, staff and public consultation it is recommended that the proposed application be supported with no further restrictions. COVID 19 protocols will be required to be followed which may limit the maximum capacity of the patio. This final determination will be under the oversite of Interior Health, WorkSafe BC and the Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch (LCRB).

Alternate recommendations

Council can support the recommendation as provided by staff. Alternatively Council could deny support for the application. If that is the case the applicant will be informed of Council’s decision and a Council resolution outlining the reason for the denial is forwarded to LCRB.  

1. THAT Council deny the Penticton Yacht Club Liquor Primary (Club) structural change application. 

Attachments

		[bookmark: _GoBack]Director

		Chief Administrative Officer



		BL

		

DvD







Attachment A – Site and Zoning Map  

Attachment B – Patio Plan layout 

Attachment C – Letter of Intent 

Attachment D – Public Consultation Map & Site Signage 

Attachment E – Public Consultation comments 			

Respectfully submitted, 	

Ken Kunka AScT, RBO

Deputy Director of Development Services

Attachment A

Site Map



[image: ]


Attachment B

Patio Layout



[image: ]N



Attachment C

Applicant Impact Statement

[image: ]




Attachment D

Public Consultation Map and Site Sign



[image: ]



[image: ]



Attachment E

Public Consultation Comments



For

We own and live in unit XXX, Lakeview Terrace's and are in favor of the application. This will enhance the area and create more desirable activity in the area.

Tom and Pat Lawrence 



Against



[image: ]

		





Council Report		Page 8 of 8

image2.png







image3.png

RECEIVED
ITY OF PENTICTON

MAR D 9 2020

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

PR w011 =

F 5&1&:&&5 e
-

pom, 81
DDD O

OO 00 OO

CITY JF PENTICTON
ACCEPTANCE

FETeTon
oo G4 il
Y L N—

;—‘ FLOOR PLAN &

vy

OCCUPANTLOD_ 75 pensons ( iwsiee)
occupmTLon 7O pensons (10







image4.png

‘{vﬁmyb% Penticton Yacht Club

293 Marina Way
Penticton, BCV2A

(250) 770-2000
pentictonyachtclub@outlook.com
www.pycmarina.com

March 3, 2020
City of Penticton

RE:_Liguor Review Application

The Penticton Yacht Club operates under a Liquor Primary Licensed Club #06837. We
currently provide food and beverages to club members with indoor space and outdoor
patio. We are licensed for 32 people in the patio area and are applying for additional
patio space to better meet the needs of our members

Sincerely

Marc Tougas

Commodore
Penticton Yacht Club






image5.png







image6.png







image7.png

April 30,2020

arina Way
Penticton, B.C. V2A1H4

Corporate Officer

City of Penticton

171 Main Street
Penticton B.C. V2A5A9

Re: Penticton Yacht Club Application for Structure Change
Dear Sirs:
We do not support the yacht club’s application to increase their exterior patio.

1) They used to play live music. On most nights they would open all the windows and
doors while the band was playing. The noise was so loud that we could not sit on our
deck and have a conversation. It was so loud that it would come through the walls and
make it even unbearable indoors. This finally stopped after numerous complaints when
their license was cancelled. At least we understand it was cancelled. It would be a
serious breach of trust if that license for live music was ever reinstated.

2) The yacht club has repeatedly failed to supervise those it rents moorage space. Several
of the owners of houseboats moored along the shore believe the boats are music
studios. These people cannot abuse their neighbours at home and get away with it, so
they come down to the marina and abuse us.

The houseboats are connected to shore-based power . The city’s “good neighbour” by-
law (Article 6.5) clearly applies. Complaints to the city seem of little avail. it was
explained to us that the yacht club would also be informed and required to address the
violators.

To date, the yacht club has not shown the courtesy and respect due those that live near the
marina. They have not demonstrated they can responsibly manage the increased traffic and
noise that would come with an expanded outdoor patio.

O ol

Vicky and Kim Goheen






image1.png







image10.png







image8.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |







[image: ]



Council Report







Date:	May 19, 2020							File No:	   RMS/690 Nelson Ave
To:	Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer
From:	Steven Collyer, Planner 1

Address:	690 Nelson Avenue 


Subject:	Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754  



Staff Recommendation

THAT Council approve “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754” for Lot 35 District Lot 250 Osoyoos Division Yale District Plan 842, located at 690 Nelson Avenue, a permit to reduce the front yard setback from 4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side yard setback from 3.0m to 1.7m, and to reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m to allow for the construction of an addition and covered porch on the existing single detached dwelling;

AND THAT Council direct staff to issue “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754”.

Strategic Priority ObjectiveFigure 1 - Property Location Map



Community Design: The City of Penticton will attract, promote and support sustainable growth and development congruent with the community’s vision for the future.

Proposal

The applicant is proposing to construct a 1.6 m2 (17.5 ft2) addition on the existing single detached dwelling and add a 9 m2 (97 ft2) covered porch extending 1.35m (4.5 ft) from the building face towards King Street. The existing building setbacks do not meet the current requirements of the R2 zone, and as such the applicant has submitted this Development Variance Permit application to legalize the existing setbacks and proceed with the proposed development. 





Background

The subject property is located at the corner of Nelson Avenue and King Street (Figure 1). The lands contain a single detached dwelling with parking accessed from the rear lane. The property is zoned R2 - Small Lot Residential and is designated ‘Detached Residential’ by the City’s Official Community Plan (OCP).

The subject property is located in a primarily residential neighbourhood, consisting of single detached dwellings along King Street to the south and along Nelson Ave. There are a few multifamily residential uses further north along King Street and a mix of commercial and residential uses along Government Street to the west.

The applicant has begun renovations under an approved Building Permit, as described in the Letter of Intent (Attachment ‘D’). The applicant wishes to make two external changes to the dwelling by ‘squaring off’ the current entrance to extend the living room space inside, and to add a covered porch facing King Street where the new primary entrance will be located. These two proposed external projects have resulted in the subject Development Variance Permit application coming forward.

Technical Review

The Planning and Building Departments have worked with the applicant on the existing Building Permit and the current Development Variance Permit application. Should the requested variances be approved by Council, a revision to the building permit will be implemented to proceed with the changes to the entrance, the enclosing of the current entrance, and the construction of the covered porch. The applicant has requested a King Street address, which will be processed through the Building Permit application.

Development Statistics

The following table outlines the proposed development statistics on the plans submitted with the application:

		

		R2 Zone Requirement

		Provided on Plans



		Minimum Lot Width:

		15 m

		10 m *



		Minimum Lot Area:

		390 m2

		348 m2 *



		Maximum Lot Coverage:

		40%

		Approx. 30%



		Vehicle Parking:

		2 spaces

		2 spaces



		Required Setbacks

Front Yard (King Street):

Exterior Side Yard (Nelson Avenue):

Interior Side Yard (south):

Rear Yard (lane):

		

4.5 m

3.0 m

1.5 m

6.0 m

		

2.7 m (existing) - Variance Requested

1.7 m (existing) - Variance Requested

1.3 m (existing) - Variance Requested

17.8 m (existing)



		Maximum Building Height

		10.5 m

		3.35 m



		Other Information:

		* The subdivision regulations for lot width and lot area only apply to the creation of new lots, and not to existing lots.









Analysis

When considering a variance to a City bylaw, staff encourages Council to consider if there is a hardship on the property that makes following the bylaw difficult or impossible, whether approval of the variance would cause a negative impact on neighbouring properties, and if the variance request is reasonable.

The proposed development maintains the residential character of the existing dwelling and maintains the intent of the Detached Residential designation. In addition, the proposed works are aligned with the following OCP policy

		OCP Policy 4.1.4.1

		Work with the development community – architects, designers and builders – to create new residential developments that are attractive, high-quality, energy efficient, appropriately scale and respectful of their context.







Staff have reviewed the application and are recommending approval based on the following:

1. The current setbacks are legal non-conforming, creating a hardship for the applicant when planning any exterior additions.

The existing house was originally built approximately 100 years ago with the previous additions completed in the 1960s, prior to the current setback requirements. This presents challenges to the applicant now that they are underway with renovations to the dwelling and wish to add a 1.6 m2 (17.5 ft2) addition at the corner and a covered porch facing King Street. Although the proposed addition is consistent with the existing setbacks, new construction is required to meet the current setback requirements of the Zoning Bylaw. The applicant experiences a hardship to follow these requirements in that there is no opportunity to do either exterior project while following the current Zoning Bylaw requirements. The proposed addition follows the existing building setbacks, essentially filling in the corner which has an existing concrete pad for the main entrance (Figure 2). This does not extend the building face any closer to Nelson Avenue or King Street than the current structure.Figure 2 - Location of Proposed Exterior Works



2. The ongoing interior renovations and proposed exterior additions provide positive impacts to the surrounding neighbourhood. 

The investment to renovate older housing stock can have positive impacts on the surrounding neighbourhood. The renovations and proposed addition and covered porch are anticipated to improve the curb appeal of the home and re-orient the home to face King Street. The covered porch will lead to the building facing King Street, provide additional amenity space for future residents, and create a valuable semi-private realm on the property. Several homes fronting King Street in the adjacent area have covered entrances or porches. Covered porches provide the opportunity for better engagement with the street; residents can casually observe activity on the street from the covered porch and engage with neighbours passing by.

3. The requested variances are considered minor in nature and reasonable in this instance.

The proposed addition is 1.6 m2 (17.5 ft2) in area. The proposed covered porch is 9 m2 (97 ft2) in area. The proposed covered porch will project 1.35m from the building face, which is less than the maximum 1.5m projection allowed into the required front yard by the Zoning Bylaw (Section 4.9). Should the variance be approved, this projection will be measured from the adjusted 2.7m front yard setback. Both of these external changes function to re-orient the building to face King Street in a positive way. 

Staff consider the request to reduce the front yard setback from 4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side yard setback from 3.0m to 1.7m, and to reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m reasonable. As such, staff are recommending that Council approve the Development Variance Permit.

Alternate Recommendations

Council may feel the proposed development is not in keeping with the character of the neighbourhood, or that the variance request is unreasonable. If this is the case, Council should deny the Development Variance Permit. This would require the applicant to amend their plans to come up with a design which meets the Zoning Bylaw regulations. Staff are recommending against this option, as in staff’s opinion the variance request is reasonable.

1. THAT Council deny “Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754” for Lot 35 District Lot 250 Osoyoos Division Yale District Plan 842, located at 690 Nelson Avenue, a permit to reduce the front yard setback from 4.5m to 2.7m, to reduce the exterior side yard setback from 3.0m to 1.7m, and to reduce the interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m to allow for the construction of an addition and covered porch on the existing single detached dwelling.

Attachments

Attachment A – Zoning Map of Subject Property

Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map of Subject Property

Attachment C – Images of Subject Property

Attachment D – Letter of Intent

Attachment E – Survey Sketch of Subject Property

Attachment F – Development Plans

Attachment G – Draft Development Variance Permit PL2020-8754



		Director

		Chief Administrative Officer



		BL

		

[bookmark: _GoBack]DvD







Respectfully submitted,					     Concurrence 



Steven Collyer
Planner 1

Attachment A – Zoning Map of Subject Property

[image: ]




Attachment B – Official Community Plan Map of Subject Property

[image: ]




Attachment C – Images of Subject Property

Nelson Ave

King St

Subject Property:

690 Nelson Ave








Entrance to be enclosed

Location of proposed covered porch



[image: ]Subject Property:

690 Nelson Ave

1115 King St



Attachment D – Letter of Intent[image: ][image: ]




Attachment E – Survey Sketch of Subject Property

[image: ]




Attachment F – Development Plans

[image: ]

[image: ]

[image: ]



		



Council Report		Page 5 of 14

image2.png

Entrance to
be enclosed

Location of
proposed
covered porch







image3.png

Entrance to
be enclosed

Location of
proposed
covered porch







image3.jpeg

CITY OF
(Pentw’co

Yool
AL

] Subject Parcel

Parcel
R2
Zoning
R2 - Small Lot Residential
RD2 - Duplex Housing: Lane

RM2 - Low Density Multiple Housing

oA

RMS3 - Medium Density Multiple Housing
C4- General Commercial

Terms of Use: The City of Penticton is a depository of public information in both printed and digital
form. The source, accuracy and completeness of this information varies. As a result, the City does not
warrantin any way the mapping information including the accuracy or suitability thereof. The user of

this |nlmmannn does 50 at their own risk and should not rely upon the information without
ion as to the accuracy or suitability thereof.

690 Nelson Avenue

R2!

Source: ESI |g|taIG\cbe GeoEye) E phicssENES/AIrbuS;

DS, USDA}USGS) AeToGRID) IGN, AR th Smmah
Meters
April-22-20
’X 0 20 40 10:56:50 AM
N 1:1,000

gy pentictonca |







image4.jpeg

9 CITY OF
V%
«’\
,

Residential

Official Community Plan Map

| Legend

W [ subjectParcel

Parcel

Detached
Residential

Official Community Plan

Future Land Use

|

Detached Residential

~ Ground Oriented Residential

=

Commercial
%? Urban Residential
Infill Residential
Inf

Residentialy }

hics; CNES/Airbus
omrr,@,\\\ty

Meters
Terms of Use: The City of Penticton is a depasitory of public information in both printed and digital ’X —— e — April-22-20

form. The source, accuracy and completeness of this information varies. As a result, the City does not
warrantin any way the mapping information including the accuracy or suitability thereof, The user of 0 20 40
this information does so at their own risk and should not rely upon the information without N 1:1,000

independent verification as to the accuracy or suitability thereof.

10:57:55 AM






image5.jpeg







image10.jpeg







image6.jpeg







image12.jpeg







image7.jpeg







image14.jpeg







image8.jpeg







image9.jpg

City Of Penticton — Planning Department — Development Services Division.

Development Variance Application — Letter of intent.

Ref: 690 Nelson Ave - Building Permit Number. BP011355

Date. April 20t, 2020.

As part of more extensive home renovation, being completed under Building Permit Number
BP011355, | apply here for a Development Variance that will address Zoning Bylaw
requirements that relate to Front and Side Yard property line setbacks, as they apply to the

existing house and a proposed awning and porch, as well as the closing-in of an existing
front door and entry way, that will be relocated.

The following references to front and side yard setbacks, are given that a proposed address
change, under the aforementioned Building Permit, is also approved, making the King St end
of the property the Front and the Nelson Ave. end of the property, the new Side.

The variances would be:

1) To reduce the required front yard from 4.5m to 2.77m.

If approved, this variance will allow the proposed covered porch (awning) on the King St. end,
because the proposed 1.35m projection will be measured from 2.77m back from the property
line instead of 4.5m.

2) To reduce the required exterior side yard (Nelson Ave side) set back from 3m to 1.74m.

3) To reduce the required interior side yard setback from 1.5m to 1.3m, in line with the
existing structure.

These changes would allow the current entrance area on the Nelson Ave end, to be enclosed
by walls.

The resulting alterations will improve the appearance and design of the house and will also
make the lane between King St and Government St, appear at the rear of the property,

consistent with other properties on the same block.

Thanks for your consideration.

Kevin Cutjar

C.
e.






image11.jpeg

AWNING/LANDING DETAIL

* The existing King St end of the house appears to have had a porch closed in, to
become an integral part of the main residence. This area contains the main front
entry and a portion of the main bedroom.

* The roof-line lends itself to being extended East, to create an awing and landing.
Proposed roof extension indicated on image below:

Proposed Landing would be less than
24inchs above grade and would not
exceed the awning projection and
extend the width of the house.







image12.jpg

R THIS FROPER

S NGN-ﬁnmcmL CHARGES AN

R maﬁ mw AFFECT THE POSHTIONI
B | stﬁ émmmna.

v ts smadax:r TQ ms FOLLDMNG
AND INTERES :

1 ‘ous OF THE smucmg CeRTRED
' CORRECT ACCORDING: TO A FIELD SURVEY = e R B s
1 cewm THiS ZBth bmor-' FEBRUARY. _2920;1: f’foﬁ”‘“ ¥ Bumm Am,,,s e
Sy 2 T wucmi aawa AND' umunes For Dmm

7 INCLUBING,: BT NOT UMITED TO, DIRECT, fmﬁlagcr

. i [ SPECIAL, AND CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING

L ouT OF R wvgamsem;m WITH ANY DIRECT OR
" INDIRECT USE. OB RELIANCE UPON THE RLAN
_BEYOND TS INTENDED USE.

wrszt amzus;ews m: o' ms zmmoa FiN{ﬁﬁEv WALLS OF
CTHE STRUCTURE§ As OF ™S um: QF ‘rms cmmcma :

HAYE NOT BEEN INGLUDED, CONSIDERED OR
wm BOUNDARY SURVEY AND MAY uor ae us
gon Ampﬁmwsmmm G ol

FlLE-::Z'ZG-—O‘I gcz Pmmu 5 '_z'f .







image13.jpeg

!

Exisrs NG -

/_—_%
E) %

Ki% Sr \,\E\n/

Nelsow Aﬁ; View






image14.jpg

| ENCIOSE N-E CoRNER — KNG St Eus — DErai.

. RMHHE"

{CuT GoplehEE |
. MM&G"'}. _COMERERTE .

. @ﬂgmi {rmmomxow) |
Stepsmin | . A

A N
|
opseun |
B

LAVAING] | . . LMM
; mm

l
1
%

4 gnu‘ﬁ?

| -%rosf"""'ﬁ"".f"iﬁejéﬁ.;fiéfm&éifSi{'fé;lmua

- _enTay. [ Lving Room
. EXTENSION - .. ...

Fl, Fk.qmmg U AN

| m-.‘t.sqislvi AYE.

| '”'fm;;;é-(:uss-r:@c;): -

KNG sT.

|

ReEmove

e

ExSTING
HOUSE -

+—1 PiSused
cHimpmey

B m

"3

Lot 35 |
PLAN %42

-~ LANE







image15.jpg

KNG Sr (easT)enp. - ;Awmuq/ﬁm::@c. ';Dé‘l"mx.’("a‘}"‘ﬁﬂ’)

A" 16 0.

AWNING EXTENSION. |
OVERLAP ~1: m/(ssq@ :

NmE,
%&w

mwe

: i H { . . )
b N d : A . . 3 i
. e A & < 3 i ‘; KR 7 o :.. o . - - -
i ; 4 . ¥ : " P A i ! : ¢
i : g ooty 2 &
' H i ' =
N . 4 B . - 3 1 41 i
T P . o ¥ ? ; . ) :
N H : " ‘ ! oo g o by
g 2 » : : : - : : s
5 . ¢ ' i ; ; : :
b 24 i 3. . 4 = i -
e o Ran e momdo P R 8E et

1*35#@ ‘
(53") f

W‘

EEval OR

F*/r &wﬂm
f mmﬁi%

Exlﬁfﬂéﬂ
- Hougg-







image1.jpeg

]
3
£
93
2
€
]
2
O]
z
o
&
°







image2.jpeg

]
3
£
93
2
€
]
2
O]
z
o
&
°







image16.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |







[image: ]



Proclamation







Seniors’ Week

June 1 – 8, 2020







WHEREAS:	Seniors are a diverse population within a society that supports its members throughout the life continuum, and recognizes individual rights to dignity, respect, autonomy and choice, and 



WHEREAS:	Seniors in British Columbia through their various contributions have helped to establish a province which reflects a unique, economic, cultural and ethnic heritage, and 



WHEREAS:	The Government of British Columbia is committed to ensuring that the voices of seniors are heard, and that seniors are valued as partners in shaping the future of this province, 





[bookmark: _GoBack]AND WHEREAS:	Seniors’ Week is a time to acknowledge the diversity of seniors and to increase public awareness of their vital role in British Columbia Society.





NOW, THEREFORE I, Mayor John Vassilaki, DO HEREBY PROCLAIM June 1 – 8, 2020 as “Seniors’ Week” in the City of Penticton.









   

							Mayor John Vassilaki

		



Council Report		Page 2 of 1

image1.emf



Microsoft_Visio_Drawing.vsdx



image2.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |









The Corporation of the City of Penticton

Bylaw No. 2020-09

A Bylaw to Amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08

WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton has adopted a Zoning Bylaw pursuant the Local Government Act;


AND WHEREAS the Council of the City of Penticton wishes to amend Zoning Bylaw 2017-08; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Municipal Council of the City of Penticton, in open meeting assembled, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:


1.
Title:


This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09”.

2. Amendment:


2.1
Zoning Bylaw No. 2017-08 is hereby amended as follows:


Rezone Lot 3 District Lot 198 Similkameen Division Yale District Plan 25054, located at 2301 Baskin Street from R2 (Small Lot Residential) to RM2 (Low Density Multiple Housing).

2.2
Schedule ‘A’ attached hereto forms part of this bylaw.


		READ A FIRST time this

		21

		day of

		April, 2020



		READ A SECOND time this

		5

		day of

		May, 2020



		READ A THIRD time this

		5

		day of

		May, 2020



		RECEIVED the approval of the Ministry of Transportation on the

		6

		day of

		May, 2020



		ADOPTED this

		

		day of

		 2020





Council resolved to waive the public hearing on April 21, 2020 and notice of intention to waive public hearing for this bylaw was published on the 23 day of April, 2020 and the 28 day of April, 2020 in the Penticton Herald newspaper, pursuant to Section 467 of the Local Government Act.  


[image: image1.png]Approves pursuant 1 sction S2Qa) o e Transportaton Act
s G ™ doyor_ Moy, a0

QDR

et of ranspoiaion & Wasica.













John Vassilaki, Mayor



Angie Collison, Corporate Officer

Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2020-09

Page 1 of 1




[image: ]



Council Report







Date:	May 19, 2020								File No:	   
To:	Donny van Dyk, Chief Administrative Officer
From:	Angela Campbell, Controller
Subject:	2019 Audited Financial Statements



Staff Recommendation

THAT Council accept the Financial Statements as co-presented by BDO Canada LLP and the Chief Financial Officer for the year ending December 31, 2019.

Background

Per the Community Charter Section 167, municipal financial statements for the year must be prepared by the financial officer and presented to Council for acceptance.

Section 171 of the Community Charter requires that the municipal auditor report to Council on the annual financial statements of the municipality.

The City’s Financial Statements are prepared according to Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS) and report the actual use of City resources in the past year in comparison to the original Council approved Financial Plan.   Upon consolidation, PSAS requires the City to eliminate entries for transactions including but not limited to inter-fund transactions and reserve transfers.  The Financial Statements vary from the City’s approved Financial Plan due to the eliminating entries, removal of debt repayments and the recording of Tangible Capital Assets as non-financial assets. 

Financial Implication

The Consolidated Surplus for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 is $11,082,066 an increase of $1,873,726 over the 2018 consolidated surplus of $9,208,340. 

Overall consolidated revenues grew slightly (1.14% increase) from 2018 to a total of $121,138,444 while consolidated expenditures decreased by .45% from 2018 to a total of $110,056,378.

Overall the financial position of the City remains strong with net financial assets of $42.6 million and non-financial assets of $324 million.

 Some specific significant highlights from the statements include: 

· Financial Assets 

· Increase in cash/investments of $12M

· Financial Liabilities 

· Decrease in long term debt of $3.4M

· Revenues

· One-time increase in Gas Tax funding $1.5M

· Increase in investment revenues $1M

· Recovery of $386,000 of Casino revenues that had decreased by $436,000 in the prior year

· Prior year had land sales proceeds of $846,000, none in 2019

· Prior year had recovery of $600,000 of emergency related costs from the Province related to flood and other response activities, none in 2019

· Prior year had contributed assets of $2.0 million relating to development projects, $12,000 contributed assets in 2019

· [bookmark: OLE_LINK1][bookmark: OLE_LINK2]Expenses:

· Increase in Policing costs of $500,000

· Prior year Carmi substation upgrade project cost of $1.5 million, this accounts for the current year reduction in Electrical Supply 

· Reserves:

· Overall increase in reserves of $9.6M

· Decrease in Own Reserves $2M

· Increase in Statutory Reserves $9.4M

· Transfers between Own and Statutory reserves of $6.8M (Council approved in early 2019)

· Increase in DCC reserves $2M

Attachments

Attachment A – Management Letter 

Attachment B – Audit Report

Attachment C – Draft Financial Statements

Respectfully submitted,

[image: ]

Angela Campbell

Controller





		Chief Financial Officer





JWB

		Chief Administrative Officer



[bookmark: _GoBack]DvD









		



Council Report		Page 2 of 2

image1.png







image2.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |







[image: ]



				Council Policy







[bookmark: _GoBack]Approval date:	May 19, 2020						Resolution No.:    XXX/2020

Subject:		Permissive Tax Exemption Policy



1.0	Goal

The goal is to provide clarity, consistency and certainty to the municipality, the public and the prospective applicants in the requirements and evaluations of applications for exemption from property taxes pursuant to Section 224 of the Community Charter.

2.0	Background and Scope

Section 224 of the Community Charter provides for permissive tax exemptions for properties used by a variety of non-profit organizations or properties that Council considers are used for a purpose directly related to the purposes of the organization. It also provides for permissive exemptions for some properties which are additional to statutory exemptions under Section 220, such as church halls or ancillary land surrounding places for public worship or privately run schools.

Exemptions provided for in Section 224 are established by Council bylaw at the absolute discretion of Council. There is no obligation to give the exemption or to continue it in future years.

Exemptions cannot be granted if the organization does not qualify under the Community Charter.

The intent of this policy and associated evaluation categories and guidelines is to identify the services and organizations which are the most complementary extensions of municipal services, and for which the burden resulting from the exemption is a justifiable expense to the taxpayers of Penticton. Support will be directed towards services the City would consider providing given adequate resources.

3.0	Policy

3.1	Applications for permissive tax exemption will only be accepted during the annual advertised application period and using the prescribed application method and form in order to ensure reasonable consideration and opportunity for all applicants.



3.2	The following information will be considered when determining whether to grant a permissive tax exemption:

a) The principal use of the property, including the services offered

b) The need for the services

c) The availability of the services

d) Other funding sources

e) The use of volunteers to deliver services



3.3	A permissive tax exemption may be granted when:

a) The organization is able to demonstrate a need for its services

b) The organization has made an effort to obtain other funding sources for provision of services

c) The organization does make use of volunteers to provide services

3.4	Exemptions are based on the principal use of the property, not on the charitable service of the organization as a whole.

3.5	Exemptions can only be granted to the portion of a property that meets all the requirements of this policy. The exemption may apply to the whole or part of the taxable assessed value of land, improvements, or both.

3.6	Only that part of the property used for non-profit activities will be considered for exemption. Commercial activities will be excluded. For clarity, society administration is considered part of the non-profit organization’s program delivery.

3.7	Applicants must show evidence of a clear mandate and competent administration.

3.8	Applicants must not be in arrears with the City in regard to any accounts for taxes, fees or charges.

3.9	The use of the property must be consistent with and in compliance with all applicable municipal policies, bylaws and legislation.

3.10	The organization must justify the need for the services and may be required to make a presentation to Council.

3.11	The organization must be seen to be working towards self-sufficiency by seeking funding from other sources.

3.12	The organization may be required to show evidence of ongoing, active volunteer involvement.

3.13	Services and activities should be equally available to all residents of the City, and benefit primarily residents of the City.

3.14	Each year, new property applications and applications with significant changes will be highlighted at the time of the annual bylaw presentation in order to demonstrate the additional benefits of services being provided for in the community. Council will have the opportunity to deny the addition of any new or changed properties whose services do not align with the current community priorities or needs. 







4.0	Evaluation Categories

All applications must meet the description of at least one of the categories below, and self-declare their primary category as part of the application:

4.1	Affordable Rental Housing: housing with rents equal to, or lower than, average rates in the private market. 

4.2	Special Needs and Supportive Housing: short term emergency or crisis protection for members of the community, supportive housing for people with special needs, halfway houses, transitional homes and group homes with supportive staff and programs. 

4.3	Health, Safety and Social Service properties: support services and programs to assist maximizing the health, safety, and quality of life of members of the community. 

4.4	Arts, Cultural and Heritage facilities: preparation and delivery of artistic, cultural or historical events, exhibits, or education to the public.

4.5	Parks, Recreation and Sports facilities: provide space and equipment for the physical and mental enjoyment of the participants. 

4.6	Places of Worship, Private Schools and Hospitals ancillary properties: must be recognized by BC Assessment as operating in one of these capacities as well as be able to provide supporting documentation to that effect. 

5.0	Application and Exemption Cycle

5.1	Applications: The annual application period will be during the Spring months of each year in order to apply to the following tax year.  Each year in advance of the application period the dates will be advertised in the local newspaper, as well as notice made to prior year applicants if possible.

a) Long Form Application: form to be used for first time applications on a property, or if a property has had significant changes in use, applicant, or physical changes to the site since the prior year application.

b) Short Form Application: form to be used for prior year exempted properties with no significant changes in use, applicant, or physical changes to the site.

5.2	Evaluations and Bylaw Preparation: The annual evaluation period will be during the Summer months of each year for the following tax year. During the evaluation time period applicants may be contacted for additional information as needed or to appear before Council to make a presentation.

5.3	Bylaw Review and Adoption: The Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw, or amendments to the Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw, must be adopted and submitted to BC Assessment prior to the end of October in order to apply for the following tax year in order for the exemptions to take effect. Proposed bylaw or bylaw amendment and the dates Council will deliberate will be advertised in accordance to the Community Charter Section 227.

Previous revisions

Approval Date: 	April 2, 2013

Council Resolution:	200/2013

Approval Date: 	April 2, 2019

Council Resolution:	190/2019



Certified correct:



 

Angie Collison, Corporate Officer

Council Policy – Revenue & Collections Permissive Tax Exemption		Page 1 of 4

Council Policy – Revenue & Collections Permissive Tax Exemption		Page 2 of 4

image1.jpeg

CITY OF }‘t_‘
I LRI pentictonaa |








